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Financial Highlights
MBRE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of
AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

TRHENERZERER QA

(IARE]) RE

MEAR (GEIAKE]DRITFEARZ

(collectively, the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated: BETHBER:
OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2022 2021
REXEJE(THER) —E--F —E-—F
Revenue WA 69,207 71,891
Loss for the year FEEE (104,251) (18,108)
OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2022 2021
REXE(THER) —E-—F —E-—F
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANQAIEA AE(HIEZR 18,589 114,824
Total assets mEE 172,840 184,777
Net assets BEFE 18,589 114,824
Net assets value per share (HK cents) BREEFE (BI) 23.7 (restated)
3.84 (R=ES)
OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2022 2021
BERM (THR) —B-=-F —F-—%
Current ratio’ ME) L & 1.7 2.3
Total debt to total assets ratio? BEG RS E L R 0.9 0.4
Return on total assets (%)3 488 B B3R K (%)3 (60.3) (9.8)
Return on sales (%)* THE B3R K (%)* (150.6) (25.2)
Loss per share (HK cents) B EE (B)
Basic and diluted HAKE#E (3.32) (restated)
(19.13) (g&5)
Notes: B aE -

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total

indebtedness by total assets.

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by

total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by revenue.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

ZHANG Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
JIA Minghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHAN Tsz Keung (Resigned on 27 March 2023)
AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon
GUO Zhenhui

COMPANY SECRETARY

Chan Lok Yin (Appointed on 19 January 2023)
Chan Mei Wah (Resigned on 19 January 2023)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

ZHANG Hengxin
Chan Lok Yin

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1104, Crawford House
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Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Bermuda
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Corporate Information

A-e

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

wWww.amco-united.com
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Despite the Year 2022 has marked a year of great challenge facing high
level of uncertainty of the economy as well as the continued political
and social unrest, outbreak of coronavirus and the volatile financial
market in Hong Kong and globally, we made efforts to initiate and
boost our momentum of growth by facilitating business development
of the respective business segments during the year. The total revenue
of the Group decreased HK$2.7 million or 3.8%, from HK$71.9 million
last year to HK$69.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from
medical products and revenue from the provision of construction services
in building construction, building maintenance and improvement works,

project management, renovation and decoration works.

To cope with the challenge of fluctuating sales order, the Group is
persisting to deploy business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing
of business processes, implementing strict cost control and ensuring
effective utilisation of resources with an aim to maintain its long-term
sustainable competitive advantages in the business segment. In the
meantime, the Group is actively exploring and identifying potential
business opportunities to expand its customer base of the business
segment in order to broaden the income streams of the Medical Devices
Business. The Group's business segment in the manufacture and sale
of plastic moulding products (“Plastic Moulding Business”) has been
downsized in recent years and revenue generated by this business
continued to decline in the current year due to end of product life cycles

of most of its products.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

The Group’s business in the provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building Contract
Works Business”) has been confronting challenges under slower growth
of the construction industry and intensified market competition. Revenue
generated for the Building Contract Works Business has decreased over
the previous year caused by decrease in awards of contracts in both
public and private sectors during the current year. Profit margin of this
business has also been curtailed as a result of decrease in awards of
contracts in the private sector which yielded higher margins in price as
well as continuous rise in subcontracting costs resulting from increased
labour costs which resulted in increased operating loss recorded for this
business in the current year. Despite the underperformed result and
stringent market environment of the construction industry, the Group
will continue to deploy efforts in tendering for contracts in both public
and private sectors, particularly contracts which yield higher margins in
price, and make concerted efforts in controlling and managing contract
and operating costs, in order to foster improvement in results of this

business.

The Group's business in the provision of money lending (“Money Lending
Business”) has generated stable income to the Group in 2022. However,
segment result of the Money Lending Business turnaround from profit
to loss in the current year. The Group has recorded a segment profit
for its business of investment in securities (“Securities Investment”)
in the current year. The Group will closely monitor and appraise the
performance of this business and cautiously assess the investment

portfolio from time to time.
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PROSPECTS

Facing elevated challenges as we step into the year 2023 with the
recovery of the economy as well as the highly volatile financial market in
Hong Kong and globally, the Group will persist to build on its diversified
business portfolio and focus its steps to formulate, evaluate and modify
business strategies of our existing businesses in order to facilitate and
motivate their business development and stabilise any downturn impact.
To cope with the business development of the business segments,
the Group will strive to deploy effective and sufficient capital and
resources allocation in respect of the different business segments, and
actively reallocate its assets, funding and labour force in response to
the changing market and industry conditions and business results. The
Group will conduct constant and dynamic performance appraisals and
assessment to evaluate the ongoing business development. The Group
will also concentrate on maintaining liquidity by effectively managing
working capital and controlling costs, and leveraging operation efficiency
by adhering to its lean organisation structure, in light of any difficulties
which may be encountered under the uncertainties in the economy and

financial market.

Alongside with the continuing evolution and modification of business
strategies to develop our existing businesses, the Group will continue to
seek optimisation of its business portfolio by adjusting it to adapt to the
changing business climate, trend and environment, and at the same time
proactively exploring and exploiting every potentially profitable business
and investment opportunity as well as new growth potentials, with
the ultimate goal of developing its business to generate and maximise
shareholders’ value and return and maintain sustainable growth and

prosperity.

Zhang Hengxin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
MIE Jﬁ -L—J- Gl & *ﬁ'

RESULTS, BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Results

The total revenue of the Group decreased HK$2.7 million or 3.8%, from
HK$71.9 million last year to HK$69.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue from medical products and revenue from the provision of
construction services in building construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, project management, renovation and decoration

works (“Building Contract Works Business”).

Gross profit of the Group was HK$16.8 million, representing an increase
of HK$2.7 million or 19.1% as compared to HK$14.1 million in 2021.
Gross profit margin increased by 4.6 percentage points to 24.2% (2021:
19.6%), primarily as a result of gross profit margin contributed from the
sale of medical products (“Medical Products”), Building Contract Works

Business and provision of money lending (“Money Lending Business”).

Other income and other gains or losses, during the year under review
recorded loss of HK$16.3 million, turnaround from other gains of HK$0.7
million in the corresponding year of 2021, which was mainly attributable
to the net fair value change of held-for-trading investments arising from
the business of investment in securities (“Securities Investment”) of
HK$4.9 million and equity instrument at FVTPL of HK$14.9 million.

The distribution and administrative expenses amounted to HK$28.8
million, which increased HK$13.3 million or 85.8% as compared to that
of HK$15.5 million for the corresponding year of 2021, primarily because

there was a share based payment recognised during the year.

HK$3.0 million) for

the year under review, which represented interest on bond payables and

Finance costs amounted to HK$1.2 million (2021:

lease liabilities.

As a result, the overall loss attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$104.3 million, which increased by HK$86.2 million or 476.2% as
compared to HK$18.1 million loss for the corresponding year of 2021
which was mainly due to the provision for expected credit loss (“ECL")
of approximately HK$74.7 million (2021: HK$14.4 million) recognised

during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group recognises impairment loss allowance for ECL on loan
receivables. The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to
assess the amount of ECL and the amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
The Group recognises lifetime ECL for loan receivables. The ECL on these
loan receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. The
Group had liaised with the borrowers and assess their financial status
and the recoverability of each loan. In the course of assessment of the
ECL, the loss rates of the receivables are derived from the probability of
default and loss given default. In view of the global economic condition
under the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group assessed that the probability
of default of certain borrowers were relatively high. As such, the credit
loss rate applied for the assessment is 46.3% (2021: 23.3%) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The increase in the ECL was mainly due to
the application of higher credit loss rate for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the higher balance of the loan receivables during the year

ended 31 December 2022 comparing with that of 2021.

Business Review
Medical Products

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Medical Products recorded
revenue of HK$54.4 million, which decreased by 4.1% or HK$2.3 million
as compared to that of HK$56.7 million in the previous year. This amount
represented 78.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year under
review. In 2022, due to the recovery from the outbreak of COVID-19, the
demand of the medical-related products decrease, causing sales demand
and revenue of the sale of medical products (“Medical Products”) to

decrease during the current year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W R D

Segment result of the Medical Products recorded a loss amounted to
HK$25.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared
to segment profit of HK$0.5 million in the corresponding year of 2021,
which was caused by the provision of expected credit loss recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022. To cope with the challenge
of fluctuating sales order, the Group is persisting to deploy business
strategies of streamlining and outsourcing of business processes,
implementing strict cost control and ensuring effective utilisation of
resources with an aim to maintain its long-term sustainable competitive
advantages in the business segment. In the meantime, the Group is
actively exploring and identifying potential business opportunities to
expand its customer base of the business segment in order to broaden

the income streams of the Medical Products.

Plastic Products

The revenue from the Plastic Products increased by 175% or HK$0.7
million to HK$1.1 million, as compared to HK$0.4 million in the previous
year, which accounted for 1.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review. A majority of plastic moulding products have suffered from
declined sales orders as relevant customers’ end products have reached
the end of their product life cycle, causing continuous decline in revenue
of the Plastic Products during the year under review. In view of this,
the Group has ceased the production of the majority of those products
which contributed a relatively low gross profit margin, and has only been
accepting small number of production orders of mould fabrication and

some products, which have a relatively higher gross profit margin.

Segment results of the Plastic Products increased to loss of approximately
HK$788,000 for the year under review, as compared to loss of
approximately HK$210,000 for the corresponding year of 2021. The
Group is persisting to implement strict cost control in the business

segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Building Contract Works Business

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from the Building
Contract Works Business generated by ACE Engineering Limited (“ACE
Engineering”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, amounted
to HK$2.7 million, representing a decrease of HK$1.4 million or 34.1%
as compared to HK$4.1 million for the corresponding year of 2021,
which contributed 3.9% of the Group’s total revenue for the year under
review. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to (i) substantial
completion of several significant public and private contracts during
the previous year; and (ii) decrease in awards of projects in both public
and private sectors, under the more stringent and competitive market
environment of the building construction and maintenance industry
caused by slower growth of the industry as well as negative effect of
outbreak of COVID-19 during the year. The segment result of a gain of
HK$0.042 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared to
the segment loss of HK$7.6 million for the corresponding year of 2021,

primarily as a result of decrease in staff cost.

Despite the business generated segment loss during the year under
review and the stringent market environment of the building construction
and maintenance industry, the Group will continue to deploy efforts in
tendering for projects in both public and private sectors, particularly
projects which yield higher margins in price, and make concerted efforts
in controlling and managing contract and operating costs, in order to

facilitate improvement in results of this business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W R D

Money Lending

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded loan interest
income of HK$10.9 million from its Money Lending, representing an
increase of HK$0.2 million or 1.9% as compared to HK$10.7 million
for the previous year, which accounted for 15.8% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year under review. Segment loss of the Money Lending
amounted to HK$39.1 million (2021: profit of HK$1.0 million). The
Group will continue to develop this business by employing prudent
credit control procedures and strategies to hold a balance between the

business growth and the risk management.

The Group’s money lending business is operated by an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, JS Finance Limited (“JS Finance”)
which is a licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
earns interest income through providing loans to customers, including
individuals, private and listed companies by using internal resources
of the Group. Customers are usually from referrals from the business
network and connections of the Group, including but not limited to
customers and suppliers. Before granting loans to potential customers,
the Group performs credit assessment process to assess the potential
borrowers’ credit quality individually and defines the credit limits
granted to the borrowers. The credit assessment process encompasses
detailed assessment on the credit history, i.e. any bankruptcy record, and
financial background of the borrowers, such as the repayment ability
as well as the value and characteristics of the collaterals to be pledged,
if any. Collaterals are required if the result of the credit assessment
of the potential borrowers is not satisfactory. The credit limit of loans
successfully granted to the borrowers will be subject to regular credit
review by the management as part of the ongoing loan monitoring
process. The day-to-day operation of the money lending business is
mainly handled by the director of JS Finance, while all loan applications

are subject to final review and approval by the Board.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Under the ongoing economic impacts of COVID-19, in order to lower
default ratio of the loan borrowing, JS Finance has reviewed and flexibly
adjusted the business strategies, which is to enhance the requirements
of the loan granted to the borrowers. For example, the borrowers have
to provide the asset proof or income proof to prove they have the
ability to repay the loan. As the requirements of the loan granted to the
borrowers are higher and the risk for the loan borrowings are lower, the

related interest rate will become lower.

Due to difficulties in repayment by customers caused by the economic
impacts of COVID-19, there was a recognition of net impairment losses
arising from expected credit losses and write-off on loan and interest
receivables in the amount of approximately HK$47.4 million (2021:
approximately HK$9.1 million) and approximately HK$Nil million (2021:
HK$5.0 million) respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Despite such difficulties, the Group will continue putting efforts in
the collection procedure of loan receivables. The impairment losses
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022 is the sum of the
impairment loss from impairment assessment on principal and interest
calculated by independent professional valuer, which considered several
factors including but not limited to (1) probability of default; (2) loss

given default; and (3) forward looking factor.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received 40
applications for loan renewals, all of which were successfully approved
and renewed. Among the successful renewed loans, all of it had been
expired during the year and the borrower had expressed its intention to
renew the loan. Based on this, the management of the Group had gone
through the credit assessment procedures before entering into of the

loan renewal agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W R D

For the loan portfolio as at 31 December 2022, the principal amount
of the loans ranged from approximately HK$0.1 million to HK$10.0
million with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 12.0% per annum
and mature within 1 year. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the loan portfolio has 74 borrowers, which comprised of 68 individual
customers and 6 corporate customers, and all of the Group's net loan
and interest receivables were unsecured. As at 31 December 2022,
the net amount of loan and interest receivables due from the largest
borrower was approximately HK$7.2 million, being approximately 8.0%
to the net loan and interest receivables of the Group. The net amount
of loan and interest receivables due from the five largest borrowers (in
aggregation with loans granted to persons connected with each other (if
any)) was approximately 25.6% of the net loan and interest receivables
of the Group. The five largest borrowers were individuals, all of which
were third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules). Further details of the loan and
interest receivables are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements in the Annual Report.

All loans and loan agreements under the Group’s money lending business
have been granted and approved in accordance with the Money Lending
Guidelines (“Guidelines”) and the Money Lending Procedure Manual
("Procedure Manual”) of JS Finance. The Guidelines provide the policies
to be observed by JS Finance for its money lending business, and set out
the objective for the money lending business is to earn interest income
to generate profits for JS Finance whilst avoiding incurrence of bad
debts. The Guidelines also provide references or specific requirements
for setting of interest rates of the loan, the tenure of the loan and
the credit assessment and approval process of each loan. Each loan
application will be considered and approved by the Board on a case by
case basis. The Board will usually take into account of the applicant’s
creditability, reputation, financial status, the value of the security (if any),
the applicant’s past repayment record with JS Finance, and the proposed
tenure, principal amount and interest rate of the loan to consider
whether a loan application will be approved and whether a security/

guarantee is needed or adequate for a loan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Procedure Manual provides the procedures to be observed by JS
Finance for granting and thereafter monitoring the repayment of the
loans. In brief, the intending borrower first fills in an application form
or the intending borrower communicates in person with the officer of
JS Finance. The officer will then collect documents from the intending
borrower for client identification and verification, and has to confirm/
enquire if the borrower is a connected person of the Group (as defined
in the Listing Rules). The application form will then be reviewed and/or
approved by any one director of JS Finance. The senior management will
draft the loan documents in accordance with the terms specified in the
approved application form. The responsible officer of the loan application
will prepare the Memorandum for Credit Analysis (“Memorandum”)
which contains the proposed terms of the loan application, the
background information of the borrower and the analysis of the
credit risks and security. The draft loan documents together with the
Memorandum will be passed to the Board for final approval. Based on
the information in the Memorandum, the Board makes a conclusion on
the credit risk assessment of the customer. Once the loan is approved
and granted, the responsible officer has to perform ongoing monitoring
review of the loan at least yearly or in a more frequent manner
depending on individual circumstances, i.e. whether repayment on time,
or market condition, i.e. change in economic conditions, and to report
the status of the loan repayment monthly and immediately report to the

Directors if any default repayment is noted.

For secured loan, during the loan monitoring process, where the
responsible officer notice that the value of the collateral is considered
to be insufficient to cover its risk exposure or that the actual loan-to-
value ratio with respect to any loan advanced has reached or exceed an
accepted ratio, JS Finance may require the borrower to deposit additional
collateral and/or security, partially repay the outstanding loan or realise
the value of the collateral in order to bring the loan-to-value ratio back

to an accepted level.

For unsecured loan, the responsible officer should conduct annual review
or in a more frequent manner depending on individual circumstances or
market condition and to report the status of the loan repayment monthly
and immediately report to the Directors if any default repayment is noted
on each loan which remains outstanding and if the responsible officer
notice that there is a material deterioration, in the client’s financial
position i.e. failure to make the repayment on time, JS Finance may
require repayment from its client after reporting to its management who

monitor the risk level.
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The Directors became aware that the balances were not collectible when
(i) they were notified by the responsible officer of JS Finance who was
under a duty to report to the Directors whenever there was any default
repayment of a loan; and (ii) reviewing the results of the assessment
of the credit risk of accounts and loan and interest receivables; the
Group has a policy for assessing the credit risk of accounts and loan and
interest receivables, and the assessment was based on a close monitoring
and evaluation of collectability and on management’s judgement,
including the ageing analysis of receivables, the current creditworthiness,
account executives concentration analysis, collateral distribution and

concentration analysis and the past collection history of each client, etc.

Generally, if the debt is overdue for 3 months, JS Finance will issue
reminder letter to the customer and if the debt is overdue for more than

6 months, JS Finance will consider to take legal action, if necessary.

The money lending business is governed by the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and JS Finance have

fully complied with the applicable laws and regulations.

Securities Investment

During the year under review, the Group recorded realised gain of
approximately HK$254,000 (2021: HK$20,000) and unrealised loss of
HK$4.9 million (2021: gain of HK$15.5 million) arising on change in fair
value of held-for-trading investments of listed equity securities in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 December 2022. No dividend income was
received from the held-for-trading investments during the year under
review (2021: nil). Segment loss of the Securities Investment amounted
to HK$4.6 million (2021: profit of HK$15.5 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held 16 listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with the fair value of HK$36.0 million. In light of the recent
volatile financial market in Hong Kong, the Group intends to diversify
its investment portfolio in order to reduce the relevant concentration
and investment risks and will closely monitor the performance of this
business. The Group will keep adopting a prudent investment attitude
and develop its investment strategy with the aim to improve the capital
usage efficiency and generate additional investment returns on the idle

funds of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Details of the Group’s top investment, in terms of fair value as at 31

December 2022, are as follows:
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Fair value % of
% of gain/(loss) total assets
shareholding for the Fair value of the Group
as at year ended as at as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022
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—B-CE hAER
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—B-CE LFEEZ W=—®B=-=-% +=A=t+-H
+=ZA=+—H NhREE +=A=t+-H ZEEHLE
Company Name/Stock Code DRAEE/ BRHERE ZBREEAL Wi (FR) ZAREE HAL
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiEx FiEx
Securities listed in Hong Kong EBLETES
WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") (8021) ER#EKRER AR (EE])
(Note (a) and (b)) (8021) (Ffi7E(a) R (b)) 1.4% 3,516 13,474 7.8%
Notes: Bt -
(a) WLS is principally engaged in the provision of scaffolding and  (a) ERTZENFTRERERBRETIEMERE

fitting out services and other services for construction and buildings
work, provision of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance services, money lending business,
securities investment business and assets management business. As
disclosed in the third quarterly report of WLS for the nine months
ended 31 January 2023, it recorded unaudited net loss from
continuing operations attributable to its owners of HK$37.9 million for
the nine months ended 31 January 2023. With regards to the future
prospects of WLS, the Directors noted that WLS remains cautiously
optimistic about overall prospects for its scaffolding sector. WLS will
continue to promote the use of the “Pik Lik” brand scaffolding system
to help improve overall efficiency while boosting the revenue and
market share of its scaffolding services division. WLS will also continue
to focus on those business segments that generate higher profit
margins and show ample growth potential such as money lending
operations. In the meantime, WLS will strictly adhere to its cost control
policy, and swiftly adjust business strategies to its scaffolding business
in response to ever-changing market dynamics in order to generate
better financial returns for its shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR DN
(b) The Group's investment strategy is to deliver a diversified and flexible

investment portfolio that will maximize sustained long-term returns
and strive to achieve high growth, while the traditional business of the
Group will continue its stable growth.

The Group's total investment in WLS was approximately HK$45.5
million. As at 31 December 2022, the Group owned 195,260,000
shares of WLS, representing 1.4% equity interests in WLS with a
carrying amount of the Group's interest in WLS of approximately
HK$13.4 million, representing approximately 7.8% of the total assets
of the Company as at 31 December 2022. Up to 31 December 2022,
no dividends was received from WLS. The fair value of WLS is based

on quoted market prices.

Save as disclosed above, none of these investments represented more
than 5% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022.

Looking ahead, the Directors believe that the future performance of the

above investments held by the Group will be volatile and substantially

affected by overall economic environment, equity market conditions,

investor sentiment and the business performance and development of

the investee companies. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain

a diversified portfolio of investment of various industries to minimise

the possible financial risks. Also, the Directors will cautiously assess the

performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s consolidated net assets was
HK$18.6 million, representing a decrease of HK$96.2 million as

compared to that of HK$114.8 million as at 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has completed
a share consolidation on the basis that every 5 issued and unissued
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
will be consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.05
each. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18

August 2022 and 22 August 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has 483,775,896 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each in issue.

Debt structure

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s total borrowings
from financial institutions were zero. The Group's total cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$3.7 million as at 31 December 2022, which
decreased HK$1.0 million as compared to that of HK$4.7 million as at

31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had bond payables of HK$30.9
million which represented unlisted bonds issued to independent third

parties.

The Group's gearing ratio was 277.1% as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: 25.8%). The ratio was determined by net debt, which
was defined as total interest-bearing liabilities comprising bond payables,
financial liabilities at FVTPL and lease liabilities less cash and cash

equivalents, over shareholders’ equity.
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Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2022,
December 2021: 2.3).

the Group's current ratio was 1.7 (31

Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had not pledged any
assets to secure bank facilities and other borrowings. The Group had no

material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars and the
exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars was relatively stable
during the year, the Group's exposure to the potential foreign currency

risk was relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's employees number was 30 (31
December 2021: 30). The Group’s employees are remunerated largely
based on their performance and experience, alongside with the current
industry practices. Remuneration packages of employees include
salaries, insurance, mandatory provident fund and share option scheme.
Other employee benefits include medical cover, housing allowance and

discretionary bonuses.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Hengxin, aged 39, joined the Company as an Executive
Director on 6 September 2016. He was appointed as the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) on 31 January
2017 and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 1 January 2017. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Human Resources Management from Huazhong Agricultural
University in 2006 and Master Degree of Arts in Industrial Relations and
Personnel Management from The University of Warwick, United Kingdom
in 2007. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in human resources

management in different industries.

Mr. JIA Minghui, aged 32, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 30 September 2016. He is the Vice President of Zhongminjinda
Investment Management Limited and also the Vice President and
Executive Director of Zhongminjinda International Investment
Management Limited. He obtained a Master Degree of Development
Economics from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University
of London, United Kingdom in 2013. Mr. Jia has extensive experience
in the international finance and project management. He had been
working in the financial conglomerate in the People’s Republic of China
and responsible for client’s project management, projects merger and

acquisition activities.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Tsz Keung, aged 33, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 11 October 2017. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the audit committee of the Company (”Audit Committee”) and
Nomination Committee on 11 October 2017. He obtained his Bachelor
of Arts in Economics from The University of Southern California in
the United States in 2011. Mr. Chan had worked as an analyst in the
loan administration department of corporate banking division of a
French investment bank. He had also worked in a United States listed
company and was a sales manager for the Asia Pacific region to handle
clients’ listing projects. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in business
development, sales and marketing and operation management. Mr. Chan
has resigned as independent non-executive director of the Company
with effective from 27 March 2023.

Mr. AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon, aged 47, joined the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee on 15 March 2018. Mr. Au Yeung is the
company secretary of China Finance Investment Holdings Limited (stock
code: 875) since May 2019, the company secretary of Values Cultural
Investment Limited (stock code: 1740) since June 2019. He is also the
company secretary of Cocoon Holdings Limited (stock code: 428) since
February 2019, and was the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Huge China Holdings Limited (now known as Cocoon Holdings
Limited) since May 2015 until August 2017. He was also the company
secretary of On Real International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8245)
since August 2017 until February 2019, and the company secretary of
Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1182) since
October 2017 until September 2019. Since May 2000, Mr. Au Yeung held
management positions in an accounting team in ASR Logistics Holdings
Limited (now known as Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group
Limited) (stock code: 1803) until January 2015. He has over 20 years of
experience in the areas of accounting, taxation, finance and auditing.

Mr. Au Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business
(Business Administration) from the RMIT University in Australia and a
post-graduate diploma in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. GUO Zhenhui, aged 59, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was appointed as a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
on 15 March 2018. Mr. Guo held managerial positions of companies
incorporated in the People's Republic of China which engage in
manufacturing electronic parts. He has over 35 years of experience in

manufacturing and management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has always recognised the importance
of shareholders’ accountability and transparency and is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code ("CG
Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except

for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the
leadership of the Managing Director.

The Board currently consists of two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director of the Company)
and Mr. Jia Minghui; and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon and
Mr. Guo Zhenhui.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also meets
as and when required. During the year, the Board held two meetings.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) assisted
the Chairman and the Executive Directors in establishing the meeting
agenda, and each Director was able to request inclusion of items in
the agenda. All such meetings were convened in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). During the year, notice
of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to
give all directors an opportunity to attend. Adequate and appropriate
information are circulated to the Directors normally three days in
advance of Board meetings or such period accepted by them. In addition
to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of

other Director during the year.

Minutes of all Board and committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors. Draft minutes
of all Board and committees meetings are circulated to all Directors and
committees members for comments within the period accepted by them

after each meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 21 to 23 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM") provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
the AGM at least once every three years. All retiring Directors shall be

eligible for re-election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his position, and
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties

effectively and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings, and

the general meeting held on 30 June 2022 are as follow:

Corporate Governance Report
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EEE(2)

EEMNEEHFEFTEERIN _T__FX

A=TB8TZRRRGZERWT

Attended/Eligible to attend

HE S AERHE
Board meetings  General meeting

Executive Directors HITES BE=gg RERXE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and REBRYE (FEHFEFLHLE) 5/5 3/3

Managing Director)
Mr. Jia Minghui ERIESE 5/5 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PRE®E S 5/5 3/3

(Resigned on 27 March 2023) (RZB-_=ZF=ZfF-++H&MT)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BRB5 88 B % & 5/5 3/3
Mr. Guo Zhenhui WHEELE 5/5 3/3

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good

corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development (continued)

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training

courses or seminars or read materials relevant to his professional and/or

duties as Director.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2022 is summarised below:

EEE (2

EERIIREGEERER &)

R SENEECONEREER Ky A%
T2 W AR B2 B SRR S 5 o B AR
B

BRI SEEHE=E_T-_—_F+=-_A=1+—H
IEFE 2 EARE R et an T

Course/Seminar
provided/

accredited by Reading

professional body materials
HEMBRM

Executive Directors HITES RAZRE AR HEER

Mr. Zhang Hengxin REFESLA - v

Mr. Jia Minghui BHELE - v

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung BREmEE (R _=F v v

(Resigned on 27 March 2023) ZRAZ++tH#T)

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon B[S 88 B T A& v -

Mr. Guo Zhenhui SPEEIE 5 4 v v

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional ZEZBZRMBBFEEERE SEN TN

development and they are committed to participating any suitable RZETMAEBEIAZERET EHESE 2 M

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. ST
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

To review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution

of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Zhang Hengxin was the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director
to be the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during
the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year under review,
the Group has been streamlining its operations, including business
development, operation efficiency and financial management. The Board
considers that it would be in the best interest of the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) that the roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company be combined to enable a strong and
dedicated leadership to reposition the Company and implement effective
measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In this light, the Company
has maintained Mr. Zhang Hengxin as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company. The Company will review the current structure

when and as it becomes appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual director is involved
in decisions relating to his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Remuneration Committee held two meetings.

The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of

each member during the year are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report

i%M\Aiﬁ-ﬂ:
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YHMEE SR =-REFEK ETARZEARBL
FERTEL-FN HFNEZESBETMREH -

FA FHEEEKEREXBE ZHEBRMAT :

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Independent Non-executive Directors BAEHITES HE/EEREE

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Chairman) FREESE (/) 2/2

(Resigned on 27 March 2023) (R—ZE-_=F=A_-++HEIT)

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon ECEF A=t 212
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Zhang Hengxin RTESE 2/2

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the following

duties:

- reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management for the year ended

31 December 2022.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and assessing the independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”)
which set outs the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity is considered from a number of
aspects with reference to the Company’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due

regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has also adopted a Directors’ nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria and nomination procedures on the
appointment of Directors. According to the Nomination Policy, the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors rests
with the entire Board or Shareholders in general meeting, as the case
may be. The Board has delegated the relevant screening and evaluation
process to the Nomination Committee, which identifies suitably qualified
candidates and recommends them to the Board. In assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee takes
into consideration the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications
including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
and ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the Board,
fulfilment of the independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules (for Independent Non-executive Directors) and diversity on the
Board under the Board Diversity Policy. After reaching its decision, the
Nomination Committee nominates relevant Director candidates to the
Board for approval or for consideration and recommendation in respect
of re-appointment of retiring Directors, for the proposed candidates
to stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Board will have the
final decision relating to its appointment of candidates as Directors or
recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election as Directors at

general meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Nomination Committee held two meetings.

The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:
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KB HEERIAT :

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Executive Director HE BB HE

Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) RTEELE (FE) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Resigned on 27 March 2023) fRE®EE (R E-_=F=A -+ tHHT) 212

Mr. Guo Zhenhui 2/2

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following

duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,

ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) of the Board;

(b) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors;

(c) reviewed the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy and

monitored their implementation; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for

re-election at the AGM for 2022.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal control

systems of the Group and providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. During the year, the Audit

Committee held two meetings.

EZEE®
AABERVEZZES YEI VS TEZER
EHE BB BESE A RNEXAHT R
NATIHEUEER -

ERZESAERIMNERARB ZMBRSE
BFEEAREZNLRABERESE ARAEEE
RUEBR MFE-

EREZEEH-ZRBUATEFTES
HELEE(XTF) REBREERBEAERE
MK -FR BERZETRITRHAGH

The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each FR G BXRZEGKENEKEZHEBRUWT
member during the year are as follows:
Attended/
Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES HE BB HE
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman) BifZ 8RB ek (£/F) 2/2
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Resigned on 27 March 2023) RE®RLE (RZZE=Z=F= A=+t HET) 2/2
Mr. Guo Zhenhui SREEE & 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties:

(a) reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and reviewed the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2022, with

recommendations to the Board for approval,

(b) reviewed report on risk management and internal control systems

covering financial, operational and compliance controls;

(c) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(d) reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group;

(e) considered the independent auditor’s independence and fees in
relation to the audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2021; and

(fy reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor’s

re-appointment and remuneration.

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, chairman of the Audit Committee,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of the

Listing Rules.

INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The investment and management committee of the Company
("Investment and Management Committee”) was established by the
Board with written terms of reference. The terms of reference are

available on the website of the Company.

The Investment and Management Committee is responsible for
managing and supervising daily operation of the Company, reviewing
and evaluating any proposed investment activities of the Company and
making recommendation to the Board on the transactions which the
percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5% according to the testing
result of the Listing Rules. It also monitors the investments of the Group.
The Investment and Management Committee comprises two Executive

Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) and Mr. Jia Minghui.

During the year, the Investment and Management Committee performed

the following duties:

— managed and supervised daily operation of the Company and

monitored investments of the Group.

- EBRREEBEARANHEHEZLE
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group incurred fees and charges by the auditor, Elite Partners CPA

Limited, in respect of audit services during the year as follows:

BB BN &

FRAEERZBRB A ZEEFETER
SRMEBAERARIN ZERRHASIMT

Fees paid/payable

et ENEA

HK$’'000

Services rendered RENRSE FHET
Audit services ZE R 450

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and the cash
flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 and for the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
in conformity with all applicable accounting standards and requirements.
The Directors have prepared the accounts for the reporting year on a

going concern basis.

The responsibility of the Company’s external auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, with respect to these financial statements are set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 61 to 68 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board which
delegated such duties and responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed to assist in
the achievement of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulation. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises risk

identification, risk evaluation and risk management.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process within its scope
of responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the
Company'’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks will occur;

and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks could occur.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Risk Management System (continued)

Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage the risk as follows:

Risk elimination — management may identify and implement certain

changes or controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — management may implement risk mitigation plan
designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to

an acceptable level.

Risk monitoring — accidents and other situations involving material
loss or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as

part of the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention — management may decide that the risk rating is
low enough that the risk is at acceptable level and no action is

required. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk

management program to ensure the level of risk does not increase

to an unacceptable level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables
the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The key components of the internal

control system are shown as follow:

. Control environment — A set of standards, processes and structures
are established to provide the basis for carrying out internal control

across the Group.

o Risk assessment — A dynamic and iterative process is conducted for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives,

forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control activities — Actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure management mitigates risks in the achievement of

objectives of the Group are carried out.

o Information and communication - Internal and external
communication are made to provide the Group with the information

needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring — Ongoing and separate evaluations are conducted to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is present

and functioning.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In addition, the Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information to ensure inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.
The Company has taken various procedures and measures to prevent
a breach of disclosure requirement, including arousing the awareness
to the Directors and employees to preserve confidentiality of inside
information and disseminating information to specified persons on a

need-to-know basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has not established an internal audit department and the
Directors are of the view that given the size, nature and complexity of
the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint an
independent internal control review advisor (“Internal Control Advisor"),
which is independent of the Group's daily operation and consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise, to perform the review on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to meet

its needs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control Review

The Board itself and through the Audit Committee and the Internal
Control Advisor has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

controls.

The Internal Control Advisor has conducted interviews with relevant
staff members, reviewed relevant documentation of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, evaluated findings of
any deficiencies in the systems and provided recommendations for
improvement. The scope and findings of review on the systems have
been reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee, who has further

reported to the Board for its review at Board meeting.

In addition to the work of the Internal Control Advisor and review by the
Audit Committee, several areas have been considered during the Board’s
review, which include but not limited to (i) adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions; (ii) the changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (iii) the scope and quality of management'’s

ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

As a result of the above review, the Board considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate for

the year ended 31 December 2022.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
Shareholders. The AGM is a valuable avenue for the Board to enter
into direct dialogue with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of Board committees will attend the AGM to answer any
question. In addition, the Company will convene special general meeting
("SGM") to approve transaction and/or matter in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the corporate governance procedures of the Company.
These will provide further opportunities for Shareholders to comment

and vote on specific transaction and/or matter.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched to
Shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

Shareholders.

All the Shareholders are given at least 20 clear business days’ notice
before the date of AGM and at least 10 clear business days' notice for

all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of Shareholders’ meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
Shareholders despatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
SGM. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company may send a written request to the

Board to request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

("Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:
(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the

Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director
for election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should
follow the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election

as a Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

Unit 1104, Crawford House

70 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Facsimile: (852) 2125 7001

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply
in relation to the recommendation, declaration or payment of dividends
to the Shareholders. Under the Dividend Policy, when considering the
recommendation, declaration or payment of dividends, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the Group’s financial results, retained
earnings and distributable reserves, liquidity and cash flow positions,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital expenditure requirements and plans, general economic conditions,
Shareholders’ interests, any restrictions on payment of dividends and
other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The Company does
not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The dividend to be
proposed, declared or paid shall be determined at the sole discretion of
the Board, subject to compliance with the Bye-laws, the Companies Act

and all applicable laws and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan Lok Yin, the
Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2022.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 20 respectively of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 69 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 180 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company
which is available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Jia Minghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Resigned on 27 March 2023)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon
Mr. Guo Zhenhui

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Hengxin and
Mr. Guo Zhenhui shall retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming

AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, an Independent Non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be terminated
by one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on
Mr. Au Yeung or by instant notice in writing served by Mr. Au Yeung on

the Company.

Mr. Guo Zhenhui, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Guo or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Guo on the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) were as follows.
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued
underlying share capital
Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
HEAFTE BT
EEHE g4 FsHEBROBE BRAEZBNBD L
(HFaE1)
Mr. Zhang Hengxin Beneficial owner 3,724,000 0.38%
(Note 2)
RTEBEAE EmEAA (PFEE2)
Mr. Jia Minghui Beneficial owner 3,724,000 0.38%
(Note 2)
ERE L ExnEEA (Mi5E2)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon Beneficial owner 3,724,000 0.38%
(Note 2)
BN it BEHEAA (BFF5E2)
Notes: Pt

1. The calculation of percentage figures is based on the relevant number of
shares as a percentage of the number of shares of the Company in issue
as at 31 December 2022.

2. These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on
4 May 2020 under the share option scheme of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.435 per share (after adjustment).

1. BOLEFNEEBROERELARAR=
T _F+-_A=+—HEBTRHHEEZ

Bt E-
2. ZESHEBERMAARNRRIBIEALD R ERE
BN T -_TFH ANAKTFEESR0.435
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)

was adopted by the Company on 30 June 2015.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to

grant share options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards

for their contributions to the Group. The eligible participants (“Eligible

Participants”) to whom the Directors may in their discretion make an

offer for grant of share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme

belong to the following classes of participants.

(1

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any entity in which any

member of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

any non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any

Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or other

technical support to any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity;
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any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity;

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the

Group; and

any company wholly owned by one or more Eligible Participants.
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As at 31 December 2022, the total number of shares available for W -_ZE-—F+-A=+—H BEERET
issue under share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was ZIR B ZEREB TAIHETZRHEH A
85,600,000. Movement of share options during the year ended 31 85,600,000 - R&EZ T -_—F+_-_A=+—

December 2022 as below: HItFE BREZZSHWT -
Outstanding Share option Lapsed/  Outstanding
at Granted adjustment Forfeited at
Exercise Vesting 1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price  Exercise period period 2022 year year year 2022
RZB=ZF
i gmte Sanfent:3 RER RER +=A
-B-H RER BREZ BAR/ =t-H
BREAH TkE EH BEA iR R 2RI #E pLd KT
HK
-
Directors
Bz
Zhang Hengxin 4 May 2020 0.435  From 4 May 2020 to No 18,620,000 - (14,896,000 - 3,724,000
3 May 2025
K7 & “Z-ZF 0435 :?:2$£H MAZE i
TANA “Z-HERA=A
Jia Minghui 4 May 2020 0.435  From 4 May 2020 to No 18,620,000 - (14,896,000 - 3,724,000
3 May 2025
EHE “Z-TF 0435 ZZ-ZERAMAZ i
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
Au Yeung Ming Yin 4 May 2020 0.435  From 4 May 2020 to No 18,620,000 - (14,896,000 - 3,724,000
Gordon 3 May 2025
BBHE “Z-TF 0435 ZT-TFRAMAZE i
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
Employees 4 May 2020 0.435  From 4 May 2020 to No 130,340,000 - (104,272,000) - 26,068,000
3 May 2025
Eg ke -2 0435 “T-ZERAMNAZE £
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
26 July 2017 0.123  From 26 July 2017 to No 186,200,000 - - (186,200,000) -
25 July 2022
RtE 013 ZZ—+tEtAZtREE &
tAZt+RE ZRCEEACZTRA
21 April 2022 0.373  From 21 April 2022 to No - 241,800,000 (193,440,000) - 48,360,000
20 April 2027
kol 0373 ZTZZFMA-f+-HE &
MA=t+—H ZRCHENAZTA

372,400,000 241,800,000 (342,400,000) (186,200,000) 85,600,000

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of share EZBEER T -_—FNA-+—AEKHEREZ
options granted on 21 April 2022 is HK$0.076. As the Company B ATEII& ) U8 £0.0767% 7T - RN A A AR

completed share consolidation in August 2022, the theoretical value Z—ZTZZFNABEZEKBRNDAEH K2/ HH
of the Company's shares immediately before the date of share options EZEBEREREEH (M- - —FOA —+—
granted on 21 April 2022 is HK$0.38. B) AT IEREE R38BT
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business, to which the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisting at the end of the year or at anytime during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisting during the year ended

31 December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of these related party transactions during the year
constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, no persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or deemed or taken
to have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the number of any class of shares
in issue of the Company, carrying the rights to vote in all circumstances

at general meetings of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 19% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 70% of the

Group's consolidated revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases attributable to the
Group'’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 73% of the Group's
total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 98% of the Group’s

total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or Shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company's number of shares in issue had any beneficial interests in any

of the five largest customers or suppliers.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in

Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code"”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2021 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules™), except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Zhang Hengxin was the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director
to be the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during
the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year under review,
the Group has been streamlining its operations, including business
development, operation efficiency and financial management. The Board
considers that it would be in the best interest of the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) that the roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company be combined to enable a strong and
dedicated leadership to reposition the Company and implement effective
measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In this light, the Company
has maintained Mr. Zhang Hengxin as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company. The Company will review the current structure

when and as it becomes appropriate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimisation of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or such
other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimise physical travelling and

printing.

The Group endeavors to monitor and minimize impact to the
environment. For the purpose of disclosing the information in relation to
environmental, social and government (“ESG"”) in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, an ESG report
of the Company will be published within five months after the end of

the financial year of the Company.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring

the Group to different levels of success.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers
has been one of the critical reasons for the Group's success. Our business
model is to maintain and build on our strong relationships within our
client base. Our mission is to provide the finest service to our customers
and the Group is constantly looking ways to improve customer relations
through enhanced services. Regarding Money Lending Business and
Securities Investment, the Group has no major suppliers. Whereas
regarding the other principal businesses, the Group has maintained good
relationship with the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the

Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,

operational and financial risks.

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic

plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,

are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements headed “FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT".

Directors’ Report

EEERE

HEFRHEBBERE

EERAR AEEATFEFRIBE/EREG
W2 EERREZ —  REBZEBERXRBMGER
FMETHBERPER ZBARE AEBEZEMH
RAEFPRESHEBZRBEAEE -—ESK
ERTABBIERBAELZFPHAR - BHEZE
BREFREME AREYETIZHER A
- EbEIRERNE AEEC BHERE
FRIFBE EARRERAERRKEAEHE
LIS F

TERRBRAEEN

AEBHEBZ T E2RMR R THEEMESIERE.
BE N R

R L B

EFEREBEMINBREZ THRER — ARG
- AKEBRIERMAEIRERD RIKE A

ENmSHERRAH - EReRMEMBRETHZ T
AT R AMEBER I AR B - i 7N 52 (B 2O SRR A

FAERIMNBREZ BN RIRRE S E R
E e

“EER

EEETE R AN EE 22 E  ARERANEE A
AHERERTF KR BRAREMEERS
MEESIBZERRR (Twmi e EmER) -

Bt %5 R B

TEMHRARENEGS
RERERE] -

B 75 R M 736 [BF 75

57



58

Directors’ Report

EEZERE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” on pages
50 to 52 of this annual report, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors, secretary and other officers and
every auditor for the time being of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in

relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and liabilities
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought

against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on

it.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman) and Mr. Guo Zhenhui.
The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited

results for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 February 2023 - the Company completed to issue and allotted
483,775,896 at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per share by way of
rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) to the qualifying shareholder of the
Company on the basis of one rights share for every one share held on
30 December 2022. The gross proceeds of approximate HK$48,378,000
will be intended to repay the bond payables and for general working
capital. For details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated
11 October 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 10 November
2022.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were

audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint

Elite Partners CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Hengxin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 69 to 179, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA HRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRREEZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, RIETEMNFEHL BREZEEATSER
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ZAHBMNGEATHBREATIZREENETE -TF
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the BEREBEGAFBEHRRLMIULENE RIFEIE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, I SZHE MAeRSEHEFHERER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREREH

Impairment assessment on loan receivables

FE W B 5% 89 6 18 AT 18

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's loan receivables with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$90,117,000 (net of
allowance of credit losses).

RZZB__F+_HA=+—R0 EB5ENERKEREEENR
90,117,000 T (B EEBIBEE) -

Management performed the impairment assessment of loan
receivables based on the information included but not limited
to the credit profile of different customers, the aging profiles,
their knowledge about the customers, market conditions and
past settlement patterns. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

EEERE (BFEETRN) TRAEPHNEELR RRBER &
BEPHRH S ARBEEERAZEREEKNEFETR
B -ERETERAGAYERTFERRERERNE NN
BEMER DA EDREF AN EREEEE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEBERPUNMEEERSE

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on loan receivables included:
EEREREFRENHETHNEZEFEEATS
18 :

o Understood the modelling methodologies for
expected credit losses measurement, assessed
the reasonableness of the key measurement
parameters determination;

e THEHEEEERFENEERELGE A ABERET
E2HWTENEEMN:
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BYZBARE
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) EREXEE &)
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HEREREHR ESEERTPNAEEEREE

Impairment assessment on loan receivables

FE W B 5% 79 6L 18 5P 1

We identified the impairment assessment of loan receivables as e Discussed with management to understand

a key audit matter due to the assessment involved the use of the management’s identification of significant
significant management judgment and estimates. increase in credit risk, defaults and credit-
EEEBRREFRNBEFGHRA ABEREZEE  REAFNG impaired loans, corroborated management'’s
W R EIRE L R E R AT R hE e explanation with supporting evidence;

- REEBHRATREEBHEHAR BOR
EERESREEE MBI UL ERER
EIRE AR

. Assessed the reasonableness of economic
indicators selection and assessed the
reasonableness of the estimation;

o FMEKEREEEZNSBUELTMEGNSIEIT:

o Checked to major data inputs used in the
expected credit losses model; and

s REBHEEBEKRLFMANEZZHERA
IS4

o Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
in relation to loan receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements.

o Gk BEREBGS MWK ERE R

BRARXL:

ERERERAT
2022 F 3§ 63
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA HRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREREHR

Fair value measurement of unlisted equity instrument

HLmEETANAAEETE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group invested in unlisted equity
instrument which is classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with the amounts of approximately
HK$5,272,000.

RZZZZF+_HA=+—H ' B5EHMKRENFLIMERT
EDBEREREaRAABEIKRNMBEE  L/5,272,000
BT

The valuation of the Group’s unlisted equity instrument is based
on valuation models which require to consider a numbers of
input. The inputs to the valuation techniques used to measured
fair value are classified into Level 3 of fair value hierarchy in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

EEEFITRFIANGEDERTZEE TH ABENMG
EREAUGH ARAEAAEENGERNTNBABIE IS ES
BB MESEAF 1R EEAENNE="BAABERER-

The valuation of the unlisted equity instrument is complex
and requires the application of significant judgments by the
management.

SEEMESRTAMMBEEREM AERKEEEERMAEAHE-

The fair values of unlisted equity instrument were valued by
independent qualified professional valuers.

FETRETANAABEDHBLABREX(EMETHE-

We identified the fair value measurement of unlisted equity
instrument as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and estimates involved by management in determining the fair
value of the unlisted equity instrument.
EEERFLLTRETAENAABEMNEIRIABEREREE
REAEEENETH L MEKIANAABER S REXRH
B R (b Et e
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FEREMXEE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEBERPUNMEEERSE

Our audit procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of unlisted equity instrument included:
EERFLTRELANAABEFELETHNERIE
[FE AT &I -

o Enquired the management and assessing the
methodologies used in fair value measurement
and the appropriateness of the key assumptions
and parameters based on our knowledge;

e EREEZENARH MERBETHNIELAAEBE
SAEMANTE BRRIRZENKE L

o Evaluated of the independent valuer's
competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity;

o AHEBMhEAMER BN BUIMEREEHIL:

o Checked the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used by comparing key underlying financial
data inputs to external sources and investee
company'’s financial statements and management
information as applicable; and

o EBLLERSR AR BUR ) A BUE BLHN R RO
RERERANMBEHREAREEEN (WWER)
TR PR B A\ BUHR B R RE M SR RA L &

o Checked the arithmetical accuracy on the
valuation model.
o BMEMEBEERNEMERM-



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA HRE

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ER &
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA HRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements for the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ho Kwan with Practising Certificate Number

PO7543.

Elite Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
10/F., 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEERkHEMEEmKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HEZE-F-—#+-F=+—HAULFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CF —E-—F
B FHExT FHT
Revenue WA 7 69,207 71,891
Cost of sales and services S I R 1% A AR (52,442) (57,776)
Gross profit EF 16,765 14,115
Other income and other gains or losses £t Uz A Fz E b U %5 5k &5 18 8 (16,341) 680
Distribution expenses 2 EH A AR (1,626) (718)
Administrative expenses TR X (27,223) (14,789)
Impairment losses recognised under TEHEEREENIR TER
expected credit loss model, WA EE - FkREE
net of reversal (74,653) (14,362)
Finance costs 7% & A 9 (1,173) (3,034)
Loss before income tax BrRETESHAIEE 10 (104,251) (18,108)
Income tax expense R 11 - -
Loss for the year attributable ARARBEEAEBLRFEERSSE
to owners of the Company (104,251) (18,108)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HthZ M (FE), W
Item that may be reclassified REAE P EEZEmHE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of @ EFINEREL 2
foreign operations N ER (1,193) 839
Total comprehensive loss EAREEAEGREE
for the year attributable 2HEBBEARE
to owners of the Company (105,444) (17,269)
(Restated)
(&gE75)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE (BI) 12 (19.13) (3.32)
BEERERAT

2022 F 3§ 69



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR &R

As at 31 December 2022 R-—FE-—fF+=-F=+—H

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CF —E-—F
B 5 FET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 16 1,074 1,358
Goodwill [EES 17 - -
Intangible assets BVEE 18 = -
Equity instrument at fair value BREREAALEBEBEIEZ
through profit or loss EmTA 19 5,272 21,418
6,346 22,776
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 2 2
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 21 36,029 42,592
Trade and other receivables Bk EMEWKKRIEA 22 126,741 114,686
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEYD 23 3,722 4,721
166,494 162,001
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A fE A /I8 24 99,011 35,630
Bond payables BRI ES 25 - 33,666
Lease liabilities HEa®RE 26 223 218
99,234 69,514
Net current assets RBEEZRE 67,260 92,487
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERE 73,606 115,263

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI T

As at 31 December 2022 R=—F=-—#+=-F=+—A

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CF —E-—F
B FHExT FHT
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Bond payables FERHEFH 25 30,900 =
Financial liabilities at fair value ERBREAANBAENEY
through profit or loss MBats 25 23,902 =
Lease liabilities HEEE 26 215 439
55,017 439
Net assets BEEFE 18,589 114,824
EQUITY =
Share capital N 27 24,189 24,189
Reserves ek (5,600) 90,635
Total equity ERBE 18,589 114,824
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for AP K HREKLEZTEeN T _ZF = A
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and are signed on its =+ —BH#ERRETZE THUATALTRE
behalf by: wmE
Zhang Hengxin Jia Minghui
S EHE
Director Director
EE 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—E_-—# 1+ -H=1+—HIFE

Share option Translation Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
B B EE BRERE ERRE 2t ER E-Hy
ThR TAR TET TAR TAER ThR
(Hizta) (Wistp) (Bistc)
As at 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—-F—H 24,189 457,234 8,819 2,423 (360,572) 132,093
Loss for the year FERE - - - - (18,108) (18,108)
Other comprehensive income for the year: & & F4f 2 i M35 -
Exchange differences on translation BREBNEBESEL
of foreign operations EXESE - - - 839 - 839
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EE2ENE/ (BR) 2B
for the year - - - 839 (18,108) (17,269)
As at 31 December 2021 and WZEZ-F
as at 1 January 2022 +ZA=+t-8k
R-E--%F—-F—H 24,189 457,234 8,819 3,262 (378,680) 114,824
Loss for the year FERE - - - - (104,251) (104,251)
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  FEEM2EEE:
Exchange differences on translation REBNEBEEL
of foreign operations [ERRE - - - (1,193) - (1,193)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FE2EFELE - - - (1,193) (104,251) (105,444)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNBRALEERR TR
share-based payment - - 9,209 - - 9,209
Expiry of share options BT - - (3,751) = 3,751 =
As at 31 December 2022 R=g==%
+ZB=1+-8 24,189 457,234 14,277 2,069 (479,180) 18,589
Notes: Bt iz
a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of a) M EEEZEASERE—NL/\—F2Q7

b)

the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated to
be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over
the relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in administrative
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the
translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$")) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the translation reserve are reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operations.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HEZE-F-—#+-F=+—HAULFE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-C —F-—F
FHET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REKETH2HERE
Loss before income tax & FT1S T AT 18 (104,251) (18,108)
Adjustments for: HTANIEE EH 2%
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % = &R #E (B35 E A
(including right-of-use assets) BEINE 284 346
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MYE WERZERERZ
property, plant and equipment BEEE = 639
Impairment loss recognised under expected EHEEEBEABTER
credit loss model, net of reversal WA EE - FkR D 74,653 14,362
Gain on disposal of property, LEME WER&EZ
plant and equipment & - (86)
Gain on change in fair value of financial FREREAANEBEIEZ
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss VBaBEzAanBEEBKE (2,952) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary BUH s — M E A a2 W (22) -
Loss on changes in fair value of equity ERBREANEENEY
instrument at fair value through profit or loss R TAZAREE
LE)EE 14,935 15,303
Realised gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEREEEREZEZFHE LR
investments (254) (20)
Loss/(gain) on change in fair value of BIEEEREZANER
held-for-trading investments g BB (KE) 4,933 (15,479)
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2L 9,209 -
Interest income MEHBA (2) (M
Interest expenses B R 1,173 3,034
Operating cash flows before working EEESHBAIZKE
capital changes HERE (2,294) (10)
Change in inventories FEZ# - 32
Change in trade and other receivables B 5 I H th fE U G IE 2 & (86,708) 19,446
Change in held-for-trading investments FIEEBEREZEE) 1,884 (3,124)
Change in trade and other payables BHhEMENRIEAZE 57,082 (10,926)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EEE(BA) EEzRE (30,036) 5,418
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ/m = (19)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EETE (BF) EEZ
operating activities B FEE (30,036) 5,399
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
—E-C —F-—F
FHET FHT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHZHERE
Interest received 2 U FE 2 1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMZE WEREXE - (1,400)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERXREZ
plant and equipment Fr{S 38 - 86
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEESL " (BH)Z
investing activities B FEE 2 (1,313)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEFTH2RERE
Proceeds from issue of new bonds BITHESFME A 30,000 -
Interest paid [EERRAS (815) (3,015)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHNEAE (219) (428)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETEESL " (BH).2
financing activities B FEE 28,966 (3,443)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBRESEEY i) #Ehm
cash equivalents FEE (1,068) 643
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning RBEPAZ2EER
of the reporting period ReZEEY 4,721 4,131
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exggss g 69 (53)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RESHRZEER
of the reporting period ReZEEY 3,722 4,721

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HEZE-F-—#+-F=+—HAULFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an
exempted company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporation information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) sale of medical products;
(i) sale of plastic moulding products; (iii) provision of construction
services in building construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, project management, renovation and
decoration works; (iv) provision of money lending; and (v)

investment in securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$ or
thousands of units of HK$ (“HK$'000"), which is the same as the

functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at

the measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’'s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs 3. FERAE BB BHMEERIEET

(continued) )

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMEMRERZITE SR

not yet effective BREENR BT R

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEFBWERFEATIEBHERARKE

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet WMz ] BB EHREER R EERTA

effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts' AR BRELNETE  REBEL

October 2020 and (BE-Z-%F
February 2022 TARZZTZZFZR
Amendments to HKFRS 17) BEUBREED
F175% (BETK) )
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRMBREER REFHRABERAR
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and FIORREEGHEN  SELAREE
its Associate or Joint Venture? £28% (B A) HEXFE?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BERMBREER EROMENEESRE
Leaseback? #1657 (B714)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as ERGHERE IR nEkERBDER
Current or Non-Current and (BFIAR) PEURBHERE
related amendments to Hong FoH(ZTTH)
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)" ZAERER]

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ BRI ENSEIR R SHBERE

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 EHMBREEL
EBRHARLR
(fBETR)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ R ERES B Z TR
(EaTR)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and B G ERE 2% HE-RHJEXZEE
Liabilities arising from a (B3IR) LREBEERY
Single Transaction’ RERIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or groups of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each

asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a
CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of
CGUs) retained.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure

is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on

a prospective basis.

Plant, machinery and office equipment 5 - 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 - 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions

of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:
. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received,

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding

underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.
The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term

reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair

value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost

less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when

the asset is derecognised.
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e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Loan interests income which are derived from the Group's ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

FTESTBERE 2)

B TR &)
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BEEENDERA K E

Ba TN AR KRB
At

the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset

that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or fair value

through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as measured at

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.

)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset and is included in the “other income and other

gains or losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, loan receivables, other receivables, deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) and retention receivables which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is

updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the end of the reporting period as well as the forecast

of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and

retention receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the end of the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. significant increase in credit spread, the

credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

B TR (%)
BIBEE (&)

BIRIZ BB T8 &R E N 7T (E
FE M FEERAMEBL ZHE (&)

(i

EERBRAEIE N (&)

- R WBILERR BB K
RN E S R EEBEY
ABTTHEBEETZEIKRET

f

- BERARERECZERNAEHE
KRB

- EBAEE EBIRMEREREZ
ERYEHEANTNES G
BHEABTEBEBEEZENK
AN

Am S A R AEERE -

fid & # T R e BB B0 R - RIB K &
EZEERR B MEERIARD KIE
B EAREEEAEASEMK
BB AL IR ANt - RUVE R o

EFRERERQT
2022 3

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the

Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
180 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESTHEBE 2)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) B ITAE &)
Financial assets (continued) BBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment BIREE B L ERFE IS LT E
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued) FIE B EERAMIER ZHE (&)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) BEEBEREMMBEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events BERAEHUBEE G RRERR
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash EEATNERE 2 —BXZESEHZ
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a B ZMBEENLBEEERE W
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data BEEFEREZERREATEH
about the following events: 2 B R AU -
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the (@ FITARBRABBERMBA
borrower; #:
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event; (b) BERAEXD DlunELHSEEEMS
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual (0 EBHRAZERALHREERAY
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, WAE R 2 & B k& KV R E - i )
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the BRABRTERARRTEE R
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; R
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) fERATRERESOETT M1
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or EF R
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial (e) ZBIFSE EREYISE &im sk &8
asset because of financial difficulties. R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables and retention receivables
(which are not significant balances or credit-impaired) using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and retention
receivables (which are not significant balances or credit-
impaired) are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic

information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit

risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, retention
receivables and loan receivables where the corresponding

adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESTHEBE 2)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) MBITA®)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued) BBEERKRE (&)

Equity instruments RATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual BATESERER TEBNEE TR

interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. FEBE ??:ﬁﬂﬁ%éf@%ﬁ_nﬁ’\ﬂﬂﬂ/*\%@ o

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the RRBETHRART BB WFREFRIEN

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. MRE BB ITROARTER

Financial liabilities g 3=F=

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost FrEM BB ERERERAERN R AL H

using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. AR BBRESIRANEBEYRTE -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BE@EAIEEIRAEEE

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial BB BEETREBBERRAANBETIE

liability is designated as at FVTPL. NUBAE > EAERERZAAEBE

IR o

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial WBEEANRTIER TR LS BRI

recognition if: ERBBEFZANEBEEYE:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a e  ZETHBRIAERDAIEEEGHR
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would FTENERATEM T BT 3K

otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets e ZUMBAREK—HVBEEXNE
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its BEIYVBEERY BAEMEHRSE
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance B — &l 0 - AR #8 AR 5 [ i E Y = R
with the Group's documented risk management or investment ERYWERE ZENKEEENE
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided BREBFETARAEEAERE
internally on that basis; or T HBBESHEZER TR EEMR

MEBIR AL - 3

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded e EHEEKEE-—HExFZEBRARITEL
derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire combined contract BEWEHM—&o mMEBSVBRE
to be designated as at FVTPL. ERIZEORATKERMEEEHNIETE

RBBEERAREEN R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables (excluded contract liabilities) and bond payables, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derecognition and modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified,
the Group assess whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative
assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when

such difference is less than 10 per cent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-F_-—f+-F=+—HAULFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition and modification of financial liabilities (continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities” original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities
and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or

loss at the date of modification.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in its

entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host

contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to
different risk exposures and are readily separable and independent

of each other.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated statement

of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits,
excluding bank balances that are subject to regulatory
restrictions that result in such balances no longer meeting the

definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or

other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as

defined above.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage

of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Over time revenue recognition. measurement of progress towards

complete satistaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of

goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group's
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in

the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
products are delivered to the customer which represents the point
in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional
for which only the passage of time is required before payment
is due. Payments received in advance that are related to sales of
goods not yet delivered to customers are recognised as contract
liabilities. Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to

the customers. The normal credit terms granted to customers up to

90 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised over time when
the Group's contract work creates or enhances an asset that the

customers control as the Group performs under the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation under the contract using the output
method of direct measurement of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer relative to the remaining work promised
under the contract based on progress certificate issued. Contract
costs qualify as costs to fulfil a contract will be recognised as an
asset to be amortised on a systematic basis with the transfer to the
customer of the contract work to which the asset relates, while
contract costs that related to satisfy the performance obligation
under the contract are expensed as incurred. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the

amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that estimated total contract costs will exceed
estimated total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as

an expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A receivable is recognised by the Group when the Group becomes
entitled to invoice based on the progress certificate issued by
the customer which represents the point in time at which the
right to consideration becomes unconditional for which only the
passage of time is required before payment is due. A contract
asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract, e.g. retention receivables.
Contract assets are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional. A contract liability is
recognised when the customer pays consideration before the Group

recognises the related revenue.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before income tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with interests in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under

“other income and other gains or losses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits

the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.

Retirement benefits scheme contribution

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of

HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to

profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in

share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be

impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the

asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount
of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect

of the time value of money is material).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various

lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these

criteria.

Contingent assets/liabilities
Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected events
that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to
the Group and they are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group assesses continually the development of
contingent assets. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow
of economic benefits will arise, the Group recognises the asset and
the related income in the consolidated financial statements in the

reporting period in which the change occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contingent assets/liabilities (continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic
benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change in
probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances where

no reliable estimate can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESTHEBE 2)
POLICIES (continued)

Related party 22}yl
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: K THIER R R AE B A
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related @ WM—BATHETIER HHA
to the Group if that person: HRERK BN AR S B A R
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; ()  HAEEHF TG LR ZE
=2
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iy BHEREEEEATEN X
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the (iy RASEXAEEGQARFEE
Group or the Group's parent. BABKE-
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) FETHEMGHHE B EAELEE
conditions applies: B A
() The entity and the Group are members of the same group () ZEREAEHEAR —S£BEMK
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow B(AZEMERR HMEBAF
subsidiary is related to the others). RRIZRME AT 2 HB @)
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —EBRAZSZERAOBZEAFNK
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a EECE (A —EEMES
group of which the other entity is a member). EETKEARMBE QT HE
BREE) -
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MERBHRA-—F=ZAHNEED
®,
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related party (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

=

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless of

whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-F_-—f+-F=+—HAULFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ - F_-—fF+_-F=+—AILEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group
of CGUs, for which the relevant corporate assets have been
allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,

could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

Details of the impairment of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets are disclosed in Note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and other
financial assets

Trade receivables and retention receivables with significant balances
or credit-impaired and all other financial assets measured at

amortised cost are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, the Group use practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables and retention receivables (which are not assessed
individually) using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based
on past due aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration of the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are reassessed

and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables,
retention receivables and other financial assets are disclosed in Note

22.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s unlisted equity instrument at
FVTPL and unsecured bond payables measured at financial liabilities
at FVTPL amounting to approximately HK$5,272,000 (2021:
HK$21,418,000) and HK$23,902,000 (2021: nil) are measured at
fair value with fair value being determined based on significant
unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material adjustments to the

fair value of these instruments. See Note 35 for further disclosures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the executive directors, being the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM"), that are used to make strategic

decisions.

The Group has five reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products and
services and requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable

segments:

(1) Sale of medical products (“Medical Products Business”);

(2) Sale of plastic moulding products (“Plastic Products Business”);

(3) Provision of construction services in building construction,

building maintenance and improvement works, project

management, renovation and decoration works (“Building

Contract Works Business”);

(4) Provision of money lending (“Money Lending Business”); and

(5) Investment in securities (“Securities Investment Business”).

Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating

segments as they are not included in the measure of the segment

results that is used by the CODM for assessment of segment

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-F_-—f+-F=+—HAULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DERIRE (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by LWTAREEZIREDHE D 2 WA R
reportable segments: EEDH
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DEBUMARELE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE--F+ZA=+—HLF
E
Building
Medical Plastic ~ Contract Money  Securities
Products  Products Works Lending Investment
Business Business Business Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREER ZBER EFRE BERE
£% % IREB HEEH £% aE
TERT TEL THERT TERT TEL THERT
Revenue from external customers RENPEEHA 54,422 1,132 2,718 10,935 - 69,207
Timing of revenue recognition R A B
At a point in time R-HEH 54,422 1,132 - - - 55,554
Qver time —BEEA - - 2,718 - - 2,718
54,422 1,132 2,718 - - 58,272
Reportable segment results ARENHEE (25,556) (788) Y] (39,148) (4,633)  (70,083)
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 34,330 16 1,142 90,654 36,215 162,357
Reportable segment liabilities AREHHEE 69,732 5,742 2,486 1,243 = 79,203
Amounts included in the measure of HENBEEL
segment results or segment assets PHEEFAZEE
Interest income FIEMA - - - ) = @)
Depreciation of property, %% BERSE
plant and equipment (BERAREEE)
(including right-of-use assets) e - - - 284 - 284
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment ~ EE{EEEEEABT
losses) recognised under expected credit R ZHAEEE,/
loss model CRESEER) 28,857 - (1,641) 47,437 - 74,653
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-F_-—#+_-F=+—HAULFE

DEBE (2)

(a) P HWAREE &)

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLLHF

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

&

Building
Medical Plastic  Contract Money Securities
Products Products Works Lending  Investment
Business Business Business Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEERD 2BER BFER BHERE
%% % IBR%B  HEEH % e
TR FEL THT TR TR FHT
Revenue from external customers REIMDEPHA 56,722 428 4,055 10,686 - 71,891
Timing of revenue recognition B R B R
At a point in time KR 56,722 428 - - - 57,150
Over time —BREREX - - 4,055 - - 4,055
56,722 428 4,055 - - 61,205
Reportable segment results AREDHEE 510 (210) (7,564) 1,024 15,505 9,265
Reportable segment assets RENBEE 8,889 15 1,828 103,185 44,481 158,398
Reportable segment liabilities AREHHEE 16,113 5,411 3,001 139 - 24,664
Amounts included in the measure of HESBEES
segment results or segment assets ABEETAZEE
Interest income FEHA - - - (1) - M
Depreciation of property, VEN G EL
plant and equipment (BEEREEE)
(including right-of-use assets) nE 231 - - 115 - 346
Impairment loss recognised HOE BERRE
in respect of property, R ZAEEE
plant and equipment 639 - - - - 639
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ BHEEBEERN
impairment losses recognised under B TR
expected credit loss model (REFERD),/
REER (205) 14 5,506 9,070 (23) 14,362
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment B-pdle - (86) - - - (86)
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE
(excluded financial instruments) (TREMEIR) 666 - - 1,400 - 2,066
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

6. DEWRE (&)

(b) THREDHBA -BHE -BE

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities kREEBEZHE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CfF —ET_—fF
FET FET
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue Al R E D B WA 69,207 71,891
Reportable segment results AISRE D ELELE (70,083) 9,265
Finance costs e (1,173) (3,034)
Unallocated corporate expenses AP EEENT (32,995) (24,339)
Consolidated loss before income tax BRAITBHRAGEER (104,251) (18,108)
Assets =93
Segment assets DEEE 162,357 158,398
Equity instrument at fair value through FERBEREAANBEIEZ
profit or loss HRITA 5,272 21,418
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeZEEY 3,722 4,721
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEBEE 1,489 240
Consolidated assets mEBE 172,840 184,777
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEEE 79,203 24,664
Bond payables R ES 30,900 33,666
Financial liabilities at fair value through FRBREANEBENEZ
profit or loss WMBaE 23,902 -
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOEREBEE 20,246 11,623
Consolidated liabilities mEAaE 154,251 69,953
BERRERAR

5
2022 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment results represents the profit/(loss)
attributable to each segment without allocation of loss on
changes in fair value of equity instrument at fair value through
profit or loss, central administrative expenses, corporate
directors’ emoluments under the heading of “unallocated
corporate expenses” and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
cash and cash equivalents, equity instrument at FVTPL and
partial deposits, prepayment and other receivables included in

corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
bond payables, financial liabilities at FVTPL and partial other

payables included in corporate liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEEE (2
(c) Geographic information (c) HEEHR
All of the Group's non-current assets (excluded financial REBE2HIERDEE (RYBIAE
instruments) were located in Hong Kong. SN BRI B o
Information about the Group's revenue from external BEASERBINES TP Z2IHAE
customers, presented based on geographical location of the BOAEPZMBUEZY FEW
customers are detailed below: N
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CF —EF-—F
FHERT FHT
Hong Kong aBA 22,740 71,464
People's Republic of China (the “PRC") PEARKEME (THE]) 45,335 -
Others H Al 1,132 427
69,207 71,891
(d) Information about major customers d) EEEFER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REEMAEEBRABBIOwZE
revenue of the Group are set out below: PZWAER T :
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CF —T-—fF
FH5 FHR
Customer A — Medical Products Business BEPA-BHEEMED 13,325 -
Customer B — Medical Products Business EFPB-—HBEEmMER 11,611 -
Customer C — Medical Products Business EPC—BEEMRED 11,432 -
Customer D — Medical Products Business BEFD-BEEMER 8,967 -
Customer E — Medical Products Business BEFE-BEEMRER = 7,670
Except for disclosed above, no other customers contributed B EXPEEEIN TEAEMES R
10% or more to the Group's revenue for both years. MEEEHAEENBATR10%3K
LA E o

ERERERATE
)12022 f?—iﬁ 127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

| R T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

.

REVENUE WA
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E--F —TE=—F
FERT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEEVEREEREISHHEER
within the scope of HKFRS 15: ZREEFEHZHA:
Sales of medical products HEBEE® 54,422 56,722
Sales of plastic moulding products HEBBEAER 1,132 428
Revenue from construction contracts BESHBA 2,718 4,055
58,272 61,205
Revenue from other sources: REEMBRZWA:
Loan interest income BERFEEA 10,935 10,686
69,207 71,891

Transaction allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of HKFRS 15 to its construction contracts and sales contracts for
medical products and plastic moulding products such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue that the Group
will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the construction contracts and sales contracts
of medical products and plastic moulding products that had an

original expected duration of one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 8. Htlzm R EMBAREE
LOSSES
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F B4
FHET FHET
Exchange gain, net b 5 e 5 3 2
Gain on disposal of property, HEME WER&E W
plant and equipment - 86
Realised gain on disposal of HERIEFEEREZEER KA
held-for-trading investments 254 20
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value of BIEEEREZANERE
held-for-trading investments 28 (5B, (4,933) 15,479
Loss on change in fair value of equity EREREANBEIE  ER
instrument at FVTPL TRAZAREBEZHER (14,935) (15,303)
Interest income B WA 2 1
Government grants (Note) T # B (K7aE) 144 253
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary BUB Tt — R M B A F 2 W 22 -
Gain on change in fair value of FREREANEAYIEZ
financial liabilities at fair value through VBBEZANEE
profit or loss gl 2,952 -
Others H A 150 142
(16,341) 680
Note: The Group recognised government grants of in respect of Covid- Wi RMEFE AEEREBBTIE

19-related subsidies which relates to Employment Support

Scheme and anti-epidemic fund subsidy provided by the Hong

Kong government where appropriate as a support for both years.

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these government grants.

FINANCE COSTS

RAxFmEENEREETE AR
B9 Covid- 1948 B8 # Bh R B & s & &
S B RE (205E ) R 38 O #8 BY © #1
B B % BUR B B RGE R R 1
HHAREIR

9. MBEH

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CF —E-—F
FHERT FHT
Interest on bond payables FEREH TR 1,146 3,000
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENS 27 15
Interest on margin interests FERBENS - 19
1,173 3,034
ERERERAT

5
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group's loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

10. BRFT BB AT B 1R
AEEZBAERABAD NG FHIEE:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CfF —E-—F
FHERT FHT
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B T A (BIEESEHE)
— Salaries, wages and benefits in kind —Fe ITEREYREA 4,074 5,179
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R K& 7 51 &I 4 5% 79 158
— Share-based payment expenses — ARG BER 2R 9,209 -
13,362 5,337
Depreciation of property, plant and Y WEREE
equipment (including right-of-use assets) (BEFERBEEE)TE 284 346
Auditor’s remuneration % B RN BN & 450 490
Expenses relating to short-term leases FHERPEEREBEEEY
and low-value assets 3 441 517
Impairment losses recognised in respect of  FLYIE - BE &KX EER
property, plant and equipment EEBE - 639
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) TBHEEEEENXET
under expected credit loss model on: HR/ (BE) ZREBE:
— trade receivables - B 5 WA 28,910 (191)
— retention receivables - ERRE S (1,701) 1,685
— loan receivables - BB 47,436 9,070
— deposits and other receivables - e K E b E W FRIE 8 3,798
74,653 14,362
Cost of inventories sold EEFEXA
(included in cost of sales and services) (Gt ASHE RRBEA) 51,800 53,807
Cost of services rendered FiT 12 44 AR 745 A 7R
(included in cost of sales and services) (FHASHE KRG A) 642 3,969
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for both years as the Group
did not derive any estimated assessable profits or had sufficient tax
losses brought forward to offset against the estimated assessable
profits.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

No PRC Enterprise Income Tax was provided for both years as the
Group did not derive any estimated assessable profits.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

M. rBHAX

EBFERIEMEFE 2 (E 5 R R
F216.5%tE o

F R A £2 [ 3 4B R A5 AT ] b AT FE SR Bt A
A BT R A E IR B R A S5
SHERBUA M WX M EFELEELE
BHEHEE-

RBHBECEMETE ([RERBHIAE])
REZEMBEEBRGN RRMEFE +
BB AR ZHER25% °

A & B 3 EEVS A (5t ERR TR A
U PR M| 67 JR 30 S AF P B S PTAS
e

REEMENAXEEAERENEMEE
ek 2 R PTIS BRI E RS RNT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CF —E-—F
FHERT FET
Loss before income tax Bk P15 75 A 1R (104,251) (18,108)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate REBREEER CEAMRE
FHEZHE (18,472) (4,307)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for NP R 2 MG E

tax purpose 18,871 6,412
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBIMA Z B IEF

tax purpose (762) (2,606)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERPIBEEBE BB E 1,111 1,625
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FASAIAERNIEBEZ

previously not recognised ik (748) (1,124)
Income tax expense FTi i & = -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$412,627,000 (2021: HK$410,427,000).
No deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses have been recognised
as at 31 December 2022, as management considers it is unlikely
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the foreseeable future. All of the tax losses as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 will not expire under current tax
legislation.

RBEBRR AEEZASBEHEEIE
4 /412,627,000 0 (ZF = —4F:
410,427,000 7)) *HREEER /LA
BRI K A] 82 B R 2R FE R Bl om A1) A it
BREE RS —FE+=_A=+—
BYERTEBEEERREERIEEE R
BEABE R_E__ER_ZT-—F
T A=+—RIZAABEBESTSE
5o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

12.LOSS PER SHARE 12.8RER

The computation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on

the following data:

BREARLEEEBRDENATBIEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-—F —E-—F
FAR FBT
Loss BiR
Loss for the year attributable to owners of — Htet E T E A N #5518
the Company for the purpose of MEZAREHEARA
computation of basic and JEEFEEE
diluted loss per share (104,251) (18,108)
‘000 ‘000
TR Fis
(Restated)
(#E5)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of Mt EEREARARESEE
ordinary shares for the purpose of ez Emkz
basic and diluted loss per share hniE 19 8 545,041 545,041

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 for the purposes of calculating basic
loss per share have been adjusted for the share consolidation and
issue of new shares by way of rights issue which took place on 22

August 2022 and 1 February 2023 respectively.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where applicable had
an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share calculation, the
exercise of the above potential dilutive shares is not assumed in the

calculation of diluted loss per share for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 13.EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2021: five) AREEONSENAERZR (ZE-—F :HA)
directors during the years were as follows: EExazBenmT:
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE-__F+-A=+—HLEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e RER RINEF
g0 BYFE STEIHR et
FTEx FER FTER FEx
Executive directors HITES
Zhang Hengxin RTE 240 - - 240
Jia Minghui B 240 - - 240

Independent non-executive BYKHTES

directors
Chan Tsz Keung Gk 120 - - 120
Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon B5E 180 - - 180
Guo Zhenhui SBEE bR 96 - - 9
Total @t 876 - - 876

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13.EEM<E 2
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—BHLFE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e EUR BARIER
EENG EWFla HE TN gt
FHT FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Zhang Hengxin KT & 240 - - 240
Jia Minghui EHRE 240 - - 240
Independent non-executive BUkGTES
directors
Chan Tsz Keung IR 8 o8 120 - - 120
Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon B 5 88 B 180 - - 180
Guo Zhenhui B 96 - - 96
Total mat 876 - - 876

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services as the directors.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office for both years. None of the directors waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.

Except disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the reporting period or at any time during the years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
none of them (2021: two) were the directors whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure in Note 13 above. The emoluments of

the remaining 5 (2021: three) individuals were as follows:

e MBHRRME

14 5E8BSHFMAL

AEEREESFHZIALH HBE(ZF
ToF I ZR)EF RFEFZHER L
NIFBEBE- R TABRALT(ZEZ—
F=ZR)ZMEWT:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-CfF A —E

FET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMAREDA S = 1,812
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R ARAE F T &4 5k - 53
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 25X 4,604 -
4,604 1,865

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZMEN T THIGE:

2022 2021

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

—E-—F —EF-—F

AE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/ 7T 5 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office for both years.

15.DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for shareholders of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor has any dividend
been proposed subsequent to the end of the reporting period

(2021: nil).

TR MBI A - 78 S (B 30 4 S ST
TREGESFMZ AL EREEMAKR
SEINIMAREEE 2 BB A QSRR
M-

15. R
EFQURRIAERERBE_T__F
TZA=ZT-HLEFEMERARRIRE
MBS RENIRE P REIR B E AR E
(ZEZ—F:#|,)-

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ BERRKRE

Plant,
Furniture machinery
and and office Motor  Right-of-use
fixtures equipment vehicles assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE HER
BRREE WARE RE EREEE @t
TET THT TR THER TR
Cost A
As at 1 January 2021 RZZE=—%—H—H 7,731 1,693 1,129 1,781 12,334
Additions NE - 1,400 - 666 2,066
Disposal during the year RAFELE (2,022) - - - (2,022)
Termination of lease arrangement BIERERH - - - (664) (664)
As at 31 December 2021 and RZBZ—4$+-A=+—-H
as at 1 January 2022 FRAZE-—%—f—H 5,709 3,093 1,129 1,783 11,714
Termination of lease arrangement BIERERH - - - (1,117) (1,117)
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+—H 5,709 3,093 1,129 666 10,597
Accumulated depreciation R ERAE
and impairment
As at 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-—-%—H—H 7,731 1,692 1,129 1,505 12,057
Depreciation for the year WAFENE - 48 - 298 346
Disposal during the year RAFEHE (2,022) - - - (2,022)
Impairment loss recognised EERRERE - - - 639 639
Termination of lease arrangement BIEEERH - - - (664) (664)
As at 31 December 2021 and WZEZ-%+-A=+—-H
as at 1 January 2022 RR=-—E--F—F—H 5,709 1,740 1,129 1,778 10,356
Depreciation for the year RAFEE - 279 - 5 284
Termination of lease arrangement RIEERH - - - (1,117) (1,117)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-Z§+ZA=t-H 5,709 2,019 1,129 666 9,523
Carrying amounts REE
As at 31 December 2022 RZB-ZZE+ZA=t-H - 1,074 - - 1,074
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—%t-A=t—H - 1,353 - 5 1,358
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group leases various office for its operations. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods at 3 years (2021: ranging from
2 to 3 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased

assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense disclosed elsewhere. As at 31 December 2022, no
outstanding lease commitments relating to short-term leases (2021:
HK$9,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment of the CGU of Medical
Devices Business and conducted impairment assessment on right-
of-use assets included in property, plant and equipment for
Medical Devices Business with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$639,000.

The management of the Group determined that the recoverable
amount of the CGU is zero as a result of unpredictable future profit
stream and market development. The impairment amount has been
allocated to right-of-use assets such that the carrying amount is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal,
its value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation and
the allocation, impairment loss of HK$639,000 has been recognised
against the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets within the

relevant functions to which these assets relate.

16.M¥E BERRE &)

FEBEEZENLAZETEL - HEWR
BREREIF (ZF_—F NF2E3F)Z
[ € HA PR 7] 37 o TH &R SR 1B M8 Bl 15 L i
BESETRGR G - REEHE
& HAMR 0 RF AR A BT EUS B 2 BARR Ay - AR
SERMAAEOMERLEE S LR B
THR HEHRTIREEANE HEE
ETSRAEERER-

AEBTEHETRAETRPHEN R =T
—ERZZBZ_—F+ZA=t+—H'&
HEENEAMEMM T HKENEHE
EEAMNESHEU- R F+=F
=t+—B VEROHHEEFENRER
EEHE(ZZFZ—%:9,000/87T) °

mf7ff¢+ A=Z+—R A&£E@E
BERA BREEBENRCELENTT
Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬂ BRBEBRFAD
X BELRRENERAEEEETREN
& EARMEEEA 2639,0007 7T ©

B R AL BRI R SR s M R B B R - AR
SEEBEERTZRSEEEMMAIIKD
CEAT - RESHECHEZFEAEEE
FEHERENMPERAREBEREES K
g -EFEABERTSZREE - REFEHA
BE/ETER 5 B - 5 E & 5639,000/% 7T
EREZEEEAENEERENE AR
BEMGEASETER-.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

17. GOODWILL 17. 58
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CfF —E-—F
FTERT FET
Cost o8
As at 1 January and as at 31 December R—A—BER+ZA=+—H
(Notes (i) & (i) (Bfat () % (i) 77,558 77,558
Accumulated impairment losses ZitREEE
As at 1 January and as at 31 December R—RA—BERA+ZA=+—H 77,558 77,558
Carrying amount as at 31 December RTt=ZRA=+—HZEKEE = -
Notes: Hid:
(i)  Building Contract Works Business (y BFERBIEER

(i)

Goodwill of approximately HK$10,196,000 relates to the Building
Contract Works Business unit, a CGU, acquired as part of the
acquisition of ACE Engineering Limited (“ACE Engineering”). The

goodwill had been fully impaired in prior years.

Medical Devices Business

Goodwill of approximately HK$67,362,000 relates to the Medical
Devices Business unit acquired as part of the acquisition of the
Titron Group in 2011, as defined and detailed in the Company’s
circular dated 12 August 2011. Owing to the significant and
continuous losses incurred by this business unit in prior years, the
goodwill of approximately HK$67,362,000 had been fully impaired

in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Contractor Contractor
registrations registrations
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBE M ESEL= A
FHET FHET
Cost %S
As at 1 January/as at 31 December ®R—B—B/R+-_A=+—H 5,016 5,016
Accumulated impairment R RE
As at 1 January/as at 31 December WR—A—B/R+=ZA=+—8 5,016 5,016
Carrying amounts as at 31 December RT=-ZR=+—HZEEE = -

ACE Engineering is a registered contractor in several government/
public organisations and only registered contractors are eligible to
obtain contracts from these government bodies. These contractor
registrations include the registration as an authorised building
contractor under the sub-category of Maintenance Works in the
category of Building Work in Group M1 approved by the Hong
Kong Housing Authority. In general, these registrations require
certain criteria to be met which effectively limit the number of
new entries in the list of authorised contractors. The contractor
registrations are recognised as intangible assets with indefinite
useful life and measured initially at cost and subsequently measured

at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

The contractor registrations relate to the segment of Building
Contract Works Business which constitutes a CGU, and had been

fully impaired in prior years.

TR RBE BN A H_EE 2T
R omESMARZRAATERERS
HITHEESEN - ZEREEAREE
AMAESEEZEGIEZ BT IR
FREIRSEMIBEETRYEERRE
He—Mms ZEFM—RAREETEZ
% T A BRI 4 A SRR Il 3R AT AR 7 4 iR
HETKEZHE cERREAM I ER AR
BERERFHBEREE M IRERA
B BREKARZHREEEBTE-

AEEAMERFEBRIRERD B (&
DEEBR-EREELEM) G LRB
EFECBERE

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

19. EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE 19. ZBRBRAIAEEIERZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EmITHA
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F —E-—F
FHET FHET
Unlisted equity instrument FELmiERT 5,272 21,418
The unlisted equity instrument represent the Group hold 1% equity FEMERTEEREERN —BEPBELA
interests in a private entity which located in PRC and principally ERFEM %RE ZERBXTEEFER
engaged in retail and distribution of automotive replacement parts EREERTEHNEGNTERDHEUAR
and accessories and relevant supply chain management in the PRC. R BB IR o
At the end of the reporting period, equity instrument at FVTPL are RmE CBREBEEEAALBEYIEZ

>t

& H R
measured at fair value. Details of the fair value measurement are Em LTE NI AREBEBEAE-EBALE

set out in Note 35. BErf 22BN M35 -
20.INVENTORIES 20. 7 E
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBo—F —E=—F
FET :F&E
Raw materials Rk 2 2
21.HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 21. 5EEERE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CfF —E-—F
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZBREES
at fair value BAREER 36,029 42,592
The fair values of these investments are determined with reference ZEREBZRANBETIZ2RBEHZATATRIK
to the quoted market closing prices on the Stock Exchange. MEET

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
140 Annual Report 2022



22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

e MBHRRME

22.BESREMERFIE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CfF —E-—F
FET FAT
Trade receivables from contracts with RERFAHNZE S RWGIEA
customers (Note (i) (Htaza) 63,765 9,357
Less: Allowance for credit losses BB EEEEE (29,050) (140)
34,715 9,217
Retention receivables from contracts with REBEFPEAZERRES
customers (Note (ii) (Bt i) 272 2,485
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (2) (1,703)
270 782
Loan receivables (Note (iv)) FE W E Sk (KT aE(iv)) 167,930 130,566
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (77,813) (30,377)
90,117 100,189
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables &% * T8 VA & & b fE UL A
(Note (v)) (K15t (wv)) 1,639 4,498
Total trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E AR GRIB B 126,741 114,686

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables and retention receivables

arising from contracts with customers (before allowance for

credit losses) amounted to approximately HK$29,117,000 and

HK$2,801,000 respectively.

RZZZ—F—A—B BFANELED
EHEUARBERERRES (MBREE
EIBEE R 5 A4 429,117,000 7T &
2,801,000/ 7T °

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group allows credit period up to 90 days to its trade
customers. The aging analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for credit losses), based on earliest of the invoice date or revenue

recognition date is, as follows:

2.BEFREMEWRRE &)
B 5 -

)

AEEGETEESEPZEENRS
ROK-HHEWFE (MEKEEER
BE)REFZAHRRATER B H (A
REERE)EDZREDWAOT :

2022 2021

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—EC-CfF —E-—F

FHExT FHET

Within 3 months 21,235 5,173
Over 3 months but within 6 months 3MEANU EEEAR 13,043 3,318
Over 6 months 437 726
34,715 9,217

(i) Retention receivables are derived from the Building Contract Works
Business and are interest-free and recoverable at the end of the

retention period of individual construction contracts ranging from

3 months to 1 year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group trade receivables
(net of allowance for credit losses) balance are debtors with
aggregates carrying amounts of approximately HK$34,715,000
(2021: HK$503,000), which are past due at the end of the
reporting period. Out of the past due balances, HK$437,000 (2021:
HK$401,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) has been past due
180 days or more and is not considered as in default because of no
recent history of default and the directors are in opinion of these

balances are still considered as collectible.

Trade receivables and retention receivables are assessed based on
provision matrix, except for trade receivables with gross carrying
amounts of approximately HK$26,167,000 (2021: retention
receivables of approximately HK$1,701,000), which are classified as
credit-impaired, that are assessed individually. The Group performed
impairment assessment for the trade receivables equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and retention
receivables which are assessed collectively based on provision
matrix exclude for those who are assessed individually or credit-

impaired:

22.EFREMEWRRE &)
Msx: (&)

(iii)

RZEBE-—F+_A=+—H £t5H
BIRKFIE (MREEBERE) D
HEER B IEES ABRE £1E4934,715,000
B (=T =——%:503,000% ) -
HRBEHRCOH -BPERT
437,000/ 7t (= F = — £ : 401,000
) (MKREEBERE) S 81808
AVl SR R N S E R OERE S - =]
RAEZSEHMDA TUHE - B REER
EEEH -

BSRWARERERRESRBEES
R BRESEBREBREMAED
26,167,000 T (=T = — 4 : BUR
E©#%91,701,000%87T) (EEDEAE
ERE) BB - AEBIZBIEE
REBEHEEFENSHEETES
JRE LT 5 T8 ) L (B AT A - S DA BB 4 SR R AT
H-BEASENBACEEFBEBER
TRESEFPHBEEERNBRR

REREERE— SRS AEETH
BE B -

TEREHEBEASEREREBEEES
B zEZRERERERRERES
EERBRNER BBFEREERE
L

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

BsE: (4&)

2. BEZREMEWRFIE 2

(iii)  (continued) (iiiy (#&)
2022
—g=-=
Gross Gross
carrying carrying
amounts — amounts —
Expected loss Trade Retention Loss
rate receivables receivables allowance
B 5 RWE ERRES
AR =R AR E AR E EiREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FERT
Not past due K 460 B 0.7% - 272 2
Less than 3 months past due BEDR=1E F 5.0% 22,363 - 1,129
Over 3 months but within BE=EANU L
6 months past due BREAR 11.5% 14,734 - 1,690
Over 6 months past due BAERSE A LA £ 12.8% 501 - 64
37,598 - 2,883
Total st 37,598 272 2,885
2021
—E-—F
Gross
Gross carrying
carrying amounts —
Expected loss amounts — Retention Loss
rate  Trade receivables receivables allowance
E 5 W FIE FEMIR E &
TREAE IR R HEARE(E HEAREE EiEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Not past due SR iaER 1.4% 8,843 784 131
Less than 3 months past due wEI LR =1EA 1.0% 103 - 1
Over 3 months but within BHI=EA A E
6 months past due BR{E A A - - - -
Over 6 months past due BEARE A B 2.4% 411 - 10
514 - 11
Total st 9,357 784 142
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BE5 RHEMBWRIE )
Notes: (continued) MisE: (4&)
(iii)  (continued) iy (#)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL of trade TREIZE(LEERNE S EKRK
receivables that has been recognised under the simplified approach: BEHEREEEREHER:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HEH ZHEH
FEFE FEFE
(REERE) (FERE) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHT
As at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—HF—H 331 1,707 2,038
Impairment losses recognised BRAREESE 123 - 123
Impairment losses reversed BREEREER (314) - (314)
Written-off HsH - (1,707) (1,707)
As at 31 December 2021 and RZFEZ—F+ZA=+—HEK
as at 1 January 2022 T %—-A—H 140 - 140
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEE 2,743 26,167 28,910
As at 31 December 2022 R-EB-_—f+=-A=+-—H 2,883 26,167 29,050
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL of TR REERARNERRE S
retention receivables that has been recognised under the simplified THIEREEEBZHE R
approach:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HEH ZHEH
FEBR FEBR
(REERE) (EERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL
As at 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—%—H—H 18 - 18
Impairment losses recognised EHRREER - 1,701 1,701
Impairment losses reversed BREREEE (16) - (16)
As at 31 December 2021 and RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—8EK
as at 1 January 2022 —ZE-=%—H—H 2 1,701 1,703
Impairment losses reversed BERBREEE - (1,701) (1,701)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-=§+=-A=+—H 2 - 2
ERERERAT

-
2022 F3§] 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

22.EFREMEWRE &)

Biak: (&)

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest vy BRERERAEEREXBEE 2K
receivables arising from the Money Lending Business of the Group. BERAE RERFE -FTERKERZ
All of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity EHEHAYANEARN - REEKH
within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over FEREMBRAZMBERN  #FHE
its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the FENE R 2 BARES - Bk EER R
borrowers' financial positions. BERIK -
The loan receivables are interest-bearing at fixed rates mutually EWERDIZAEHNFTERBEZEE
agreed between the contracting parties, ranging from 4% to FMEFE - FHMENFA4%E12% (=
12% per annum (2021: 6% to 12% per annum). All of the loan T —F FHNENTF6%E12%) °
receivables were unsecured as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. R _FR-_ZT-_—%+=ZA
=+t—R FMERKERASEER.
Loss allowance for ECL has been made on an individual basis under BHEEEBEZBEEBHBER KX
general approach. The movement in ECL for loan receivables during FTE 2 BRI EESE L c REFEREWE K
the years is as follows: ZTRBEEBERZEEHIHRMT
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime ECL
12m ECL impaired)  (credit-impaired) Total
24 2R
TZEARS FEEB FEER
FEER (REEHE) (FERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT TR TR
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—f—H 173 4,586 21,498 26,257
Impairment losses recognised BEZRERSE 186 3,353 21,747 25,286
Impairment losses reversed BRERERSE (48) (1,510) (14,658) (16,216)
Transfer to 12m ECL BRE+_EAREEEER 294 (282) (12) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRZHEHEERE
(not credit-impaired) (REEHE) (49) 1,927 (1,878) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRZ2HEHEESRE
(credit-impaired) (EERE) (25) (1,358) 1,383 -
Written-off ik - - (4,950) (4,950)
As at 31 December 2021 and RZEZ-F+-A=+—H
as at 1 January 2022 ZZ--&—-f-H 531 6,716 23,130 30,377
Impairment losses recognised BRZREESR 73 1,240 49,947 51,260
Impairment losses reversed BEREREESE - (113) 3,711) (3,824)
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREZ2HEBEERE
(not credit-impaired) (REERE) (5 5 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRZ2HEHEERE
(credit-impaired) (EERE) (14) (5,250) 5,264 -
As at 31 December 2022 RZB-Z5+=ZA=+-H 585 2,598 74,630 77,813
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z =

Bsr: (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

EoF+Z At —HILEFE

2.BEFREMEWRRE 2

The Group’s deposits, prepayment and other receivables
represented the following amounts as at the end of the reporting
period.

AREE 2 RS - TN FRIE N H b WK
BERmEHRZ THIHE-

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-C—fF —E-—F

FER FHET

Prepayment SCENE- ¢ 935 1,835
Deposits e 353 2,178
Other receivables HAth pE U R TE 351 485
1,639 4,498

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s deposits amount
of approximately HK$184,000 (2021: HK$1,888,000) which
represented deposit placed with securities broker for the trading of
investment securities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s other receivables with the
amounts of HK$351,000 (2021: HK$361,000) (net of allowance for
credit losses) mainly represented payment of expenses on behalf of
subcontractors.

The following table show reconciliation on ECL of deposits and
other receivables under general approach:

R-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8" %
184,000 70 (== — — 4 : 1,888,000
BIL)ZHEFALREEB RS  ZN
BERBREBAFARSIBERBHFLL
i

RZTEZ=ZF+ZA=+—H £%5H
2 E B W FIE A351,0008 T (=&
Z—%:361,0008 ) (HBREEEE
BE)TEER>EEIXNZER-

TREI R —REERNIZ S R EAM
EWFENERAEEBRYR:

Lifetime ECL
12m ECL  (credit-impaired) Total
2HEH
TZEAES FEF#B
FEER (E&RE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
As at 1 January 2021 R-—E-_—%—A—H 180 2,400 2,580
Impairment losses recognised EHRRRERE - 3,845 3,845
Impairment losses reversed EEORERE (47) - (47)
Transfer to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) ##E2HEHEEERE
(FERME) (125) 125 -
As at 31 December 2021 and EA:::—E'T'*H:‘I'—B&
as at 1 January 2022 N-_T-_ZF—HF—H 8 6,370 6,378
Impairment loss recognised EEEMMTEEETE 25 - 25
Impairment loss reversed BEERREREE - (17) (17)
Written-off k| - (6,353) (6,353)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZEZ-f+=ZHA=+—-H 33 - 33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

g .

24.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2.BERBEEEY
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CfF —E-—F
FRT FEL
Cash at bank and on Hand RITAFHERE 3,722 4,721

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held
by the Group. The bank balances carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.001% to 0.5% (2021: 0.001% to 0.5%) per

annum.

Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

ReRBReSEVEEASERFA 2RT
BEARRRE - RITEBRRTHEENENT
0.001EZE05E (ZZE=-—4:0001EZE
05E)&H &

AR (AR A mEBKEME
¥ EREPEZINEERIROIMGE &
ERMEEERE AEBEEEEBER
RETINEEB 2 RITEARB L BKE
L E -

24 BB REMENRKE

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-C—fF —ET-—F

FHET FET

Trade payables B S EMNRIA 61,010 10,797

Retention payables B RE 958 1,521

Contract liabilities EHEE 5,007 5,005
Amount due to Titron Group J& {3 Titron Group Holdings Limited

Holdings Limited Z A 1,700 1,700

Amounts due to the vendors FERE T 27 IE 7,500 7,500

Accruals and other payables JE &t R I8 [ H M FE A~ /I8 22,836 9,107

99,011 35,630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented
based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

20 B REMEMNFIE 2

REBERKR BREARERERANS
52 BRI HITIT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

—EC-CF —E-—F

FET FAET

Within 3 months =@EAR - 5,447
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EAERNEANRN - 3,104
Over 6 months A< E A 61,010 2,246
61,010 10,797

The average credit period granted by suppliers up to 90 days.

Contract liabilities represented payments received in advance that
were related to sales of goods not yet delivered to customers arising
from the Medical Products Business. The Group recognises this
amount as revenue when the goods are delivered to the customers.

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to nil.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, included in the Group's accruals
and other payables are an amount due to Titron Group Holdings
Limited ("TGHL") of approximately HK$1,700,000 and the cash
consideration of HK$7,500,000 payable to the vendors of Titron
Group (as defined and detailed in the Company’s circular dated 12
August 2011) arising from the acquisition of Titron Group in 2011.
TGHL was one of the vendors of Titron Group. Titron Group is
principally engaged in the Medical Products Business and the Plastic
Moulding Business. One of the shareholders of TGHL, Mr. Yip Wai
Lun, Alvin, was a former shareholder and the former chairman and
managing director of the Company. The amounts were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand as at 31 December 2022
and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, accruals and other payables mainly
comprised of accrued interest payables with the amounts of
approximately HK$3,270,000 (2021: nil), accrued consultancy
services with the amounts of approximately HK$1,991,000 (2021:
HK$1,991,000), accrued advertising expenses with the amounts
of approximately HK$3,050,000 (2021: HK$550,000) and amount
due to a director of certain subsidiaries with the amounts of
approximately HK$5,012,000 (2021: HK$4,350,000). The amount
due was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

HERR T2 FHEEMRS ROK-

EHABREBREMEHTZHARIN T
EPzEmBEAMIBRFE -FE M
RNTFEPE AEERBZTEARA -

R-ZE-—F—HA—H AaNEaGERZE-

RZEZZFRZFZ—F+ZA=+—
H AEBZEAFREREMENRER
¥ —% & I Titron Group Holdings Limited
([TGHLJ) z 378 491,700,000 jt B it —
T —FURBEESEE(TERFBRER
ARIBSAE-_T——F N \A+=-AHZE
R)ELXZEMNEREESEFZ2HESNRE
7,500,000 7T > TGHLAERE £ E 2 Hh
—NEH - EEEBFTERFERERE
BRPBEAER - TGHLZ — AR ERERZ
WEEBEARRNBRERIIERRESHE
KR RNZEZZFRZF—F+=A
=t+—H ZFEREER SENRERE
SKIEE -

i3
Rala

b

R-ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—8 EstxE
REMEMNREBEEZBIEREMNETE
493,270,000 C (Z T = —4 F) - fE&
B ERS#91,991,0008 T (T = — 4
1,991,000/ 7T ) ~ FERHE & F24Y3,050,000
BT (2T = —F:550,00087T) RENE
FHIE A RIES 2 FRIEAY5,012,0007 7T (=
T = — % 14,350,000 7T ) ° FE A A E
BIF - RERAREREE-

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

25.BOND PAYABLES

25. EfHE %

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-CF —E-—F
FHERT FET
Unsecured bond payables measured R KA 2 R KR
at amortised cost: R &S
Principal amounts of bond payables ERES RS 30,000 30,000
Interest payables JE 1~ A1) 2, 4,170 666
34,170 30,666
Less: Interest payables included in trade and & : 5T A B 5 R E i FRIBH
other payables JE A ) 2 (3,270) -
Less: Bond payables included B EF AR BB ENES
in current liabilities - (30,666)
30,900 -
Unsecured bond payables measured RBBEREAABEYEZ
at financial liabilities at fair value through % B EFE N EKR
profit or loss JESEH 23,902 -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company newly
issued unlisted bonds to certain independent third party with total
principal amounts of HK$30,000,000. The bonds are unsecured,
interest bearing ranging from 5% to 6.5% and will be matured on
the date falling on the ranging from 36 months to 96 months after

the respective date of issue of the bonds.

On 12 October 2018, the Company issued unlisted bonds to an
independent third party with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000. The bonds are unsecured, interest bearing at
10% per annum and will be matured on the date falling on the 36
months after the date of issue of the bonds. Interest payables of
the bonds were included in the bond payables in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

On 1 December 2020, the Company entered into extension
agreement to further extend 3 months from the original maturity
date. All the other terms and conditions of the bonds remain

unchanged.
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RABMETBELRE = AMETASATE
#330,000,000 LR L &S - ZEH HE
IR IRN F5%E6.5%5 8 - W EH 3
TEEMASE36EAZSEAKE R
FHR

RZE-NFE+A+TZA ARAR—%F
T B =75 BT & 48 %1 730,000,000
THELEIMES ZEFRABERRIEFER
E10%:T 8 WA EH 1T HBIRE 36
MABERE A - BHFEMNFEFAKZE
B IRR KA Z ERHES -

WoE-FF+=A—R ARARTLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

25. BOND PAYABLES (continued) 25. BE'N’E% (#%&)

On 3 January 2022, the Company entered into extension agreement
with bond holder of bond payables with principal amounts of
HK$30,000,000 issued in 2018 to further extended 5 years from
12 January 2022 to 12 January 2027 and interest rate will be
adjusted to 10.5% per annum (the “Extended Bond Payables”).
The Company has the rights to further extended 5 years from 12
January 2027 (the "Extension Option”) subject to settlement of all

outstanding interest.

The Extension Option is not closely related to the host contract
and regarded as embedded derivatives in the host contract. The
Company designated the Extended Bond Payables and the Extension
Option as a whole in accordance with HKFRS 9 and classified as

financial liabilities at FVTPL.

RZZEZZF—A=ZH ARQFRHEZZT
— J\5 31T #) 74X & $830,000,000/% 7T &Y f&
RNEHFNEFRE AT LEHHE B
T A+ HE—STEHRFE=
T+ A+ =B REMNXEARR
105% ([EEHEAES]) - RIEEMA
HMAEENBE AARBERA-ZT -t
F-A+t-RBE—SPTEHAF ([TEHE
2Rl -

JEHDR BRI IFRT AN EZAMERR
RBEABHNBRARNTET R - ARBIRE
RV RELEDFORERIEELTH
ENEFREHEEERDBEREBER
BARBEIGZMBEE-

HK$'000
FET
Cost 2%
As at 1 January 2021, as at 31 December 2021 R-—E——#F—H—RB - R-—E——&
and as at 1 January 2022 _ .

TZA=Zt+—HRRZZ__—H—H -
Extension of the bond payables JEfS BT HA 30,000
Interest payables FEATFI) B (3,146)
Fair value change NRAEBEES (2,952)
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-A=+-—H 23,902

The fair value of Extended Bond Payables with the amount of
approximately HK$30,000,000 as at the extension date and at
the end of each reporting period have been arrived by reference
to the valuation performed by Peak Vision Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified external valuer. The effective interest rate of

the Extended Bond Payables at the extension date is 10.5%.

RIEHAMREREHRETHERNES
B A St {8 930,000,000 7T T3 £ £ £ 18
VEERINBEER RS TEARARE
THEERER - NITH B T EN
BEHFHERMER10.5% °

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

26.LEASE LIABILITIES 26.HEEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CF —T-—fF
FHET FAET
Within 1 year —FR 223 218
More than 1 year but less than 2 years —FREMFR 215 439
438 657

Analysed as: baR =
— Current —mEE S 223 218
— Non-current —JEREE D 215 439
438 657

[ERRAEEENEEERFENT536%
£6.07% (ZZE = —F : N F5.36% %

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range
from 5.36% to 6.07% (2021: from 5.36% to 6.07%).

6.07% ) °
27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. R7&
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
REBE &8
FiET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05
(2021: HK$0.01) each

Authorised:
As at 1 January 2021,
as at 31 December 2021
and as at 1 January 2022
Share consolidation

As at 31 December 2022

Issued and fully paid:
As at 1 January 2021,
as at 31 December 2021
and as at 1 January 2022
Share consolidation

As at 31 December 2022

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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SREESET (ZE=-—F:

0.01BT) 2EBER

EE

RZE-_—F—H—8"
—E-—FF+ZA=F+—HK
—E-_F—H—H
& o
R-ZBZZ-F+=-H=+—8H
ERTRAR:
RZE-_—F—HA—8"

T —F+ZA=+—8HkK
T _F—H—H
& O

R-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H

40,000,000,000 400,000
(32,000,000,000) -
8,000,000,000 400,000
2,418,879,481 24,189
(1,935,103,585) -
483,775,896 24,189
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

At a extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 18
August 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed to approve the share
consolidation of every five issued and unissued existing shares of
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each of the
Company (the “Consolidated Share”). The capital reorganisation were
effected on 22 August 2022.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant

income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made
retirement benefits scheme contributions totalling approximately
HK$79,000 (2021: HK$158,000). During the year ended
31 December 2022, no contributions was forfeited (2021:
HK$287,000).

27.

28.

BAS ()
3

RZTZZFNA+NBARBERITHR
RHENAG L —BEBRABZRERBUL
EHARKROIETHE BT RARETRAR
196 BB —RRO0.05B LKA A Al & B Ik 15
([&pkHm]) BASER-_Z__FN\A
—t+=-RAER-

EERKEF

AEBRBEFLBFERESFEEM
REBRRRBIEDREREAZEZESR
am—mEt A EeR 8 ([RESRE
) - BEEHEABULEIATEL
ERMFURIREE - RIBBTEDFE B
LEREEEARERZABRAZS%MA
FHEIE L H5R 1fEAE A B B Y A30,000
AR LR - A BIE L 2 B AR -

REBEE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE"
AEEBELHRKBRGEEREED
79,000/ 7T ( =& = —4F : 158,000/ 7T ) °
REBEE_Z-__F+_A=+—HIFE"
B SRR M (=& = —4F : 287,000

JT) °

EFRERERQT
2022 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of

the Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as incentives or

rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors may
grant share options to the eligible participants as defined in the
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the

Board may determine.

The eligible participants (“Eligible Participants”) to whom the
directors may in their discretion make an offer for grant of share
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme belong to the

following classes of participants.

(1) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director)
of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest

("Invested Entity”);

(2) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the

Company or any Invested Entity;

(3) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity;

(4) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity;
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(5) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technical support to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

(6) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity;

(7) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity;

(8) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the

development and growth of the Group; and

(9) any company wholly owned by one or more Eligible

Participants.

Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days from
the date of the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the share
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to
determine the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share.

29. B HESHE (2)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of approval and adoption of the Share Option Scheme
provided that the Company may at any time seek approval from the
Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under any
share option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit

as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting at
which the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained
from voting. Share options granted to substantial Shareholders
or independent non-executive directors or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years

and will expire at the close of business on 29 June 2025.

On 29 June 2021, the Company passed a ordinary resolution to
refresh the share option scheme mandate limit of not exceed 10%

of the total number of shares in issued as at 29 June 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of share options granted and remain
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was 85,600,000
(2021: 372,400,000), representing 17.7% (2021: 15.4%) of the

shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Details of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme

are as follows:

Date of grant
RHAM BB 1T

Vesting period Exercise period

29. B HESHE (2)

BREZTENSHEZTS2RMIBRE -
ETBREHEF0FRITE W EIT(E
BREN VAR ABREZEAREHR
Z—RIBE BRI BIM0FAFERK
ERCUHR T _RAFAA-TNLEE
EREEREER -

RZZEZ—FRNAZ+NB ARAREB
—HEEBRBE USBREGINEK
HRBEENATBER T - —F XA
“THHADETROEERNI0% -

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H REER
BB R MARITEOBREETE
A T EITHV AR 15 U B /285,600,000/%
(== = —%:372,400,0008%) " 15 & B &
NABETRMNMNI7I% (ZEZ—F:
15.4% ) °

RIEERES MR 2 BREZFIBWN
T

Exercise price

TEE RARE

Adjusted price

26 July 2017 N/A
—E—t+FHLHAZ+KXH @ R

26 July 2017 - 25 July 2022
—EtEFEAZTAREE A8 F

HK$0.123/ 7T N/A

—E--F+A=-+HAH

4 May 2020 N/A 4 May 2020 - 3 May 2025

—T-_TFRAMA @ R —T_TFERAMAEE
“E-hERA=H

21 April 2022 N/A 21 April 2022 — 20 April 2027

—E-—fmMA=+-8 T —E-—4MA=+-AE

“ZE+FMA-+H

HK$0.0877% 7T HK$0.4357 7T

HK$0.0746/&7C  HK$0.3734 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share
options held by eligible employees and other eligible participants of
the Group during the year.

29. BB PRREETEl ()
TEEBAEMAEHKIES REMA B
SR P PO AR A T BB AR BB -

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Adjusted Lapsed Expired  Outstanding at
1 January during during during during during 31 December
2022 the year the year the year the year the year 2022
RZBZZE RZBZZE
-R-H tZA=t-8
Date of grant REAE R AT FREH ERTE FRERE FRER FREH R 1T
26 July 2017 ZE—tEEAZTRAE | 186,200,000 - - - - (186,200,000) -
4 May 2020 ZE-ZERAMA 186,200,000 - - (148,960,000) - - 37,240,000
21 April 2022 ZEZZFMAZ+—H - 241,800,000 - (193,440,000 - - 48,360,000
372,400,000 241,800,000 - (342,400,000) - (186,200,000) 85,600,000
Exercisable at the end of ~ RS HRATE

the reporting period 85,600,000

Weighted average exercise fIETH1TEE (B7T)
price (HK$) 0.1050 0.0746 - - - 0.1230 0.4000
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Adjusted Lapsed Expired  Outstanding at
1 January during during during during during 31 December
2021 the year the year the year the year the year 2021
R-Z-—F RZE-—%
-A-H TZA=+-8
Date of grant REAH WAL ERFRL ERFR ERBHE ERKH EREH HATTE
26 July 2017 ZZ—+FLAZFE 186,200,000 - - - - - 186,200,000
4 May 2020 “Z-ZERANA 186,200,000 - - - - - 186,200,000
372,400,000 - - - - - 372,400,000

Exercisable at the end of ~ RIS HRATE

the reporting period 372,400,000

Weighted average exercise  JIETH1TEE (B7L)
price (HK$) 0.1050 - - - - - 0.1050

The exercise prices and numbers of share options have been
adjusted with effect from 22 August 2022 due to the capital
reorganisation.

The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 had a
weighted average exercise price of approximately HK$0.400 (2021:
HK$0.105) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
approximately 3.45 years (2021: 1.95 years).

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2022 determined at the date of
grant using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was approximately
HK$9,209,000.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing

Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

e MBHRRME

BIRAESTE (2

WEARBENL-_BAABEEEEAE -
FZBRAZBABLT

26 July 2017 4 May 2020 21 April 2022
Grant date ®EHBEH —T—+F —ETF = —

tA=+XH A AMEA mA=-+—A”
Share price on date of grant (HK$) R BEZKRE (BiT) 0.123* 0.084* 0.072*
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (BT 0.123* 0.087* 0.0746*
Expected volatility (%) TEEDRE) (%) 113.63 64.96 107.32
Expected life (year) TEETEH (F) 5 5 5
Risk-free rate (%) EEMRLE (%) 1.2 0.36 2.64
Expected dividend yield (%) TEEREE (%) - - -

*  The inputs did not reflect the impact of share consolidation

completed on 22 August 2022.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous five years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
valuer’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$9,209,000 (2021:
nil) for the year ended 31 December 2022 in relation to share

options granted by the Company.

* HABTERMR-_Z-_—-F /A
ARG AN E.

FBHRBRIEARRNBESF ZARRMR
BZELKBEFE - ZRANER 2 AT F
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B RITRE R & ERTEHAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. & QR Z BB AR R &

COMPANY
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F —ET-—F
TET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBAR Z = 1 1
Current assets REEE
Prepayment and other receivables T8 FRIE K B FE YRR 414 223
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NN 73,729 99,042
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESZED 618 -
74,761 99,265
Current liabilities REBEE
Bond payables EES = 33,666
Amount due to a subsidiary FER— M B AR 2 5IA 2,496 1,170
Other payables H b e FR0E 10,335 3,348
12,831 38,184
Net current assets RBEERE 61,930 61,081
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBER 61,931 61,082
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Bond payables EES 30,900 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through BREBEZREAAEBAEIEZ
profit or loss MBaE 23,902 -
54,802 -
Net assets EEFE 7,129 61,082
EQUITY s
Share capital N 24,189 24,189
Reserves & 5 (17,060) 36,893
Total equity fESERE 7,129 61,082

On behalf of the Board: REESZY:
Zhang Hengxin Jia Minghui
REHE B HHE
Director Director
BF 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

31. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 31. A Al f#

Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAP &R E BRERE i ER st
FTER FTER TERT FTER
As at 1 January 2021 RZZE-_—%F—HF—H 457,234 8,819 (423,544) 42,509
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEERZEBHELE
loss for the year - - (5,516) (5,516)
As at 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—§+ZA=1+—H
as at 1 January 2022 r—ZE--%—F—H 457,234 8,819 (429,160) 36,893
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEERZEBHELE
loss for the year - - (63,162) (63,162)
Recognition of equity-settled R AL E R D
share-based payment - 9,209 - 9,209
Expiry of share options i P 1 3 2 - (3,751) 3,751 -
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-—_f+-A=+—H 457,234 14,277 (488,571) (17,060)
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Name of subsidiaries

Place/country of
incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

32. B A AR

Percentage of equity interest

attributable to the Company Principal activities

WEAREE ERRIEEBR BRARBRREEREXR ARREERERD L TEXH
Directly Indirectly
Hi Gk
ACE Engineering Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary - 100% Engaged in building
shares of construction, building
HK$15,255,000 maintenance and
improvement works,
project management,
renovation and
decoration works in
Hong Kong
Zi@ T BE 15,255,000/ T 2 & REAUSBTRE BF
75,000,0008% BELRNETER ERE
B REREHTE
AMCO United Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 services to the Group
EREBRBEERAF Bk BT B@RR AR EREERRY
BEST REWARD GLOBAL LIMITED British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
("BVI") Us$1
EERRBRAF ABRABS ([RBR 1ZT2EBRIR REZR
T#ESE])
CONSTANT GROSS LIMITED BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Us$1
RaBRAA EEEXHS 1Em 2 EBRR REER
Consun Wealth Management Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of management
Limited of HK$100,000 services to the Group
REMEERERAA Bt 100,000/ 7T 2 & i@ AAEERAERRS
100,000
DYNAMIC TIME GLOBAL LIMITED BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Us$1
BERIRIRERAA ARERHS 1R EBRR REZER
Energy Best Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Us$1
Energy Best Investments Limited EBERUES 1EL 2 EBRR BAER

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. B A RFE (2

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

Place/country of
incorporation

Percentage of equity interest

Name of subsidiaries attributable to the Company Principal activities

KELEERE EMR L EX BRATRBRRE EMER ARAEEREED L TREHR
Directly Indirectly
B B3

FITAERELHERAA PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding

RYTAEREEABRAT  FH AR 5,000,0007T REZR

EESREXERD PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding

EREREEERA hE AR #10,000,0007 REZR

Grace Champ Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100% Engaged in the business of
HK$1 securities investment

REREBRAF B BT EBRIR NEBSREEH

JS Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of money lending
HK$1

RIEMBERRA BiE BT Z EBBRIR RENERY

MAX ABUNDANT LIMITED BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1

BRBRANA EBRAHES 1ET EBR K RERR

Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
HK$1,000 products

BRIEEFRAF 0 1,000 T2 &K HEEBEAER
1,000f%

Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Sale of medical devices
HK$1,000 products

BRRREBRAF 0 1,000 T2 &K HEBRRBER
1,000f%

Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
HK$1,000 products

BRRARCEERAF Bk 1,000 T2 &R HERBRAER
1,000/

Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
HK$1,000

rERBEEARAA Bk 1,000 T2 EER RERR

1,000/
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the Group’s results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

* Wholly-foreign owned enterprise

The subsidiaries in the PRC are private companies with limited

liabilities.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the reporting period or at any time during the year.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

32.ff B A RFE (&)

33.

FRINHER B _FRITB-_—F+
A=+ BESRAFTEFELEEAF
FEEXIERFEBEEFEERLD 2
RARNBAR - EERA  H5HEAMK
BRAZHBREBERBRIIER

* SNEBERE

FEIMERRR/LABRAIA

REPRRFANEAER - HEMNBAR
ABITEAERES-

BEALXRS

FTEEEAB 2R

B R A B SRR K B A N2
mT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-CfF —E-—F

FHx FHT

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e EMAEDAS 876 876
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R RAE F T &4 5k - -
876 876

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

(b)

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows from

financing activities.

34 REREER
(a) METHELECEBZHIR

TRAGIAEERAEDEL L AE
29 DERLRERSED -BA
EREL AFERS KRS EAR
KRS RERRNGARSRERD S

BARELIBRERENAE-

Financial

liabilities at fair

Bond value through Lease
payables profit or loss liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZBBER
BARBEIE

&S ZHBEE HESE st

FHET FHET FHET FHET

As at 1 January 2021 RZTZ—F—A—H 33,666 - 419 34,085

Financing cash flows BERERE

— Interest paid -BNME (3,000) - (15) (3,015)

- Repayment of lease liabilities —BEHESRE - - (428) (428)

New leases entered into BEIVHHAE - - 666 666

Other non-cash changes (Note) HuFRe &8 (4it) 3,000 - 15 3,015
As at 31 December 2021 and RZFEZ—F+ZA=+—BKk

as at 1 January 2022 —E-_-_%—A—H 33,666 - 657 34,323

Financing cash flows MERSME

— Interest paid -BNME (788) - (27) (815)

— Repayment of lease liabilities —-EEBHEERE - - (219) (219)

— Issue of new bonds —BIIMES 30,000 - - 30,000
Transfer to financial liabilities at BREFEBZRANEBEIER

fair value through profit or loss ZHBaE (30,000) 30,000 = =

Other non-cash changes (Note) HMFREEH (4/:2) (1,978) (6,098) 27 (8,049)

As at 31 December 2022 R-B--§+-RA=+—8H 30,900 23,902 438 55,240

Note:

through profit or loss.

Other non-cash changes represented interest expenses
recognised in profit or loss, interest payables and gain
on change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases, including leases of right-
of-use assets and short-term leases, for the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$687,000 (2021:

HK$960,000).

Mizr: HMFERSBIHENERTRE
RZMBFX  BNAE RE
BESRBEAABEIE VB

BEZARBESS -
(b) HEZR SR HAEE
BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIL%F
E o eiEFEREEERERCHEE
MHEE 2R E R 254 £687,000
B (ZF = —1F : 960,000/ 70) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

35.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 5. ®RERE D M BEERY
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEEHRE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CF T —F
FHET FET
Financial assets: HBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL FREREANEBEINR I HMBEE
— Equity instrument at FVTPL —BBRBREAREBAEYEZ
E#mITA 5,272 21,418
- Held-for-trading investments —BEEERE 36,029 42,592
Financial assets at amortised cost B AR B EE
— Trade and other receivables — 85 REMERFIE 125,806 112,851
— Cash and cash equivalents —BakReFEEYD 3,722 4,721
170,829 181,582
Financial liabilities: HigEE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FRERBAARBEIEZHBEE 23,902 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEKANEZ M BEE
- Trade and other payables —E 5 REMERKIE 94,004 30,625
- Bond payables —FEREH 30,900 33,666
148,806 64,291
Fair value of financial instruments MBIANAAEE
Financial instruments of the Group’s financial assets BHEZMEELULALBEIEN
and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair REFHBEERBEE B Z

value on a recurring basis T A

EERRGEMBRERAMBEERMT
BEZEEEREAABEES

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

35.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 5. BBy 2 M BEER M
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEEME =)
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEMHEEDNNAEETEN
financial liabilities that are measured at fair FTEBUBEERMBABNA
value on a recurring basis REE
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable REFTAABER ASERAREECHAA
data to the extent it is available. For instruments with significant BEmSEE - RERE=EEATAH
unobservable inputs under Level 3, the Group engage an REABBENTAME ASEZERT
independent qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The EEBRGLEMETHE-BRERSER
management works closely with the qualified valuers to establish HEMEEEE AR EE K (BRI
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The MEAGARE - BEERSHREHRRA
management reports the findings to the directors at the end of EXZERERUBEBEBEEAABER
each reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in fair FHYRA o

value of the asset.

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are AEEETHBEERVBABRNRE®R
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The FHRZAANEEFE - TREHBEHAD
following table gives information about how the fair values of these MEEZENBEEC A AANBEIER:

financial assets and are determined.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ FZE E=E gt
THT THT THT THT
As at 31 December 2022 R-B--§+=-HA=+—H
Fair value on a recurring basis BASEMEELLLEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL FERBREALBENE
ZHBEE
- Held-for-trading investments ~ —#{EEERE 36,029 - - 36,029
- Equity instrument at FVTPL - BRBREANEBE
FIRzERT A - - 5,272 5,272
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ERBHZEALBEIE
ZHBAaE
- Bond payables —-ERESH - - 23,902 23,902
ERERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-F_-—#+_-F=+—HAULFE

35.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

5. RERE D 2 KEERN
BEBEHME 2

BREEMEENNREETEN
rEEMBEERMBEBENA
REE#®)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g E-E E=E @t
FTET FET FTET FET
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—$+-A=+—H
Fair value on a recurring basis ~— JZAEE B EL L BB E
Financial assets at FVTPL BERBERREAAEETE
ZHBEE
- Held-for-trading investments ~ —#{EEEHRE 42,592 - - 42,592
- Equity instrument at FVTPL - EBRBREAR FTE
FlfRz #aT - - 21,418 21,418

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of the events or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers

into or out of Level 3 during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

35.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 35.
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

The following table presents the changes in fair value of equity
instrument at fair value through profit or loss which are classified
as Level 3 category for the year ended 31 December 2022:

REMBRRME

EoF+Z At —HILEFE

BRENE D 2HMBEEERY
KEEME»

BREEMEEDUQNAREBETEN
AEEMEKEERMBEAGNA
REE#®)

TE#BHIBE_T-——F+-—A=+—8
HFEE SRAES-BREAZEBARSR
ARBEFE X TANARBEES:

HK$'000

FET

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—HF—H 35,851

Loss on change in fair value NRABEZEEIE (15,303)

Exchange realignment HE 5, 38 870
As at 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—F+ZA=+—HRK

as at 1 January 2022 R-_ZET-_—F—F—H 21,418

Loss on change in fair value AAEEZEE (14,935)

Exchange realignment PE 5% (1,211)

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-Z-F+=ZA=+—H 5,272

The reconciliation of fair value measurement of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Significant
Valuation technique

fEE R

unobservable input

BERATUBEEGARE

BHE=

BBRBRBRAREBEINRZMBAERR
i AR B AR A B TS R Y R

—EAREETSENEH

Relation of significant unobservable
inputs to fair value

EXTABERARBEAABENBRE

Discount rate: 19.2%
(2021: 21.5%)

BRI % :19.2%
(ZZF=—%F:21.5%)

Equity instrument at fair value Income approach
through profit or loss
BERBREAAEBEIK

ZHE@mTA

L OV’

Discount for lack of marketability:

20.6% (2021: 20.6%)
RZMERE MR

The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value, and vice versa.

FREHE AABEEME: RZTA-

The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value, and vice versa.

HBAFYR DABEYE: RZTFA-

206% (ZEB=—%:20.6%)

Financial liabilities at fair value Hull-white model Interest rates: 8.10%-11.15%

through profit or loss
BERBRRRAABEINRZYBAG

TR R A FIK:8.10%-11.15%

The higher the interest rate, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa.

Flxge AABESE: R2TR-
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B 35 SRR Y EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HFEF-E-—#+-F=+—HIFE

B5.

36.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

Fair value gains or losses on equity instrument at FVTPL, held for
trading investments and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are included in “other income and other gains or

losses”.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its

own equity share price and its investment in equity securities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarter, in close co-operation with the board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to

financial markets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-F_-—f+-F=+—HAULFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies

and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements
is the gross carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables and bank
balances. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing

basis.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal credit

36. M AMERE &)

ZERRIDE T XA EE 2 M5 ER
B K B PIBR -

(i) FERRE

AEB NG RAEMAFERKEME
BBz EREERR RS MBR
MRASCHERHIEEEZ EAREE -

AEEZEERBIZ
&EMEW-

BEAREES
B RRITHH B

ﬁEﬁEIEZT.:,\BZﬁ WHEEER

ﬁfﬂ%y\21

AEENAREESHIHRENLT

DI

Trade receivables and

Other financial

rating Description retention receivables assets
R EE TR it EFZRNNEREURES HitSREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due (not credit-impaired)
amounts
5/ B RGEFEDBRE  TEIAEAK > HEHEEER TEARBEREER
(RBEEREBR)
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
but usually settle in full (not credit-impaired)
BxeE BEHABRTRIGEREREBETEHEE 2URHEEER TEARBEREER
(RBEERERBR)
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL —
credit risk since initial recognition (not credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)
through information developed
internally or external resources
33 BEBANREENIIMNIERTNLRRALE 2HRHEEER THESBEEER
EERRME (RBEERERBR) (RBEEREBR)
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
is credit-impaired (credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
& BUSBREERREERE FHEMEEER THESBEEER
(BEERESE) (BERESE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
M ERRTABHEABARENT KRR B T LA 5H B T LA 5H
EmALEBE W E RIBRN A EBE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies

and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 1 to 3 months from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from

customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 20% (2021: 36%) and 72% (2021: 96%) of
the trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest debtor

and the five largest debtors respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 22.

For loan receivables, the directors make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of loan receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and

supportive forward-looking information.

The Group considers loan receivables as doubtful if the
repayment of principal and/or interest has been overdue for
more than 3 months and principal. The Group considers the
loan and loan interest receivables as loss if the repayments
of principal and/or interest have been overdue for more than
6 months for loan and loan interest receivables; and in cases
the collection of principal and/or interest in full is improbable.
The directors considered that credit quality classification of
gross loan receivables with the amounts of approximately
HK$62,226,000 (2021: HK$107,436,000) as performing and
HK$105,704,000 (2021: HK$23,130,000) as a loss.

Details of impairment loss recognised and movement of
ECL are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.

()

6. MR MERE &)

EERE &)

BEAREEAREE 5 K H M EURR
EMELAZEERBRZE - T EER
BEMERHE22 -

REMERME EERBEEEE
R BELR AEMNEEREN
BERARATSERELER REKE
FREY AT B TE B 1T 1 Bl AT 4 -

Hﬂ’Z!Sﬁ)Sé/EW, B e B A3 E
CRAIAEBERERERRRE-
hﬁ%&/&%légmﬁﬁﬁt A6
B (BMEKRERRERFEMmMS) -
AIAEBRERERRERFERE
BRRBRT TAEERKE A

SR/EFE -EERABEBER
RE#4962,226,0008 T (=T = — 4
107,436,000/ 7T) M {= & & 8 &5 &
JB #) % 105,704,000 T (=T — —
123,130,000/ 7T ) BEE -

5 B 2 R A (B AR B B B 5 AR
B HERRGAHBRENE
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e RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

For deposits and other receivables, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12m
ECL except for balances of nil (2021: HK$6,370,000) were
impaired based on lifetime ECL classified as credit-impaired
as a result of significant increase in credit risk. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, impairment losses of approximately
HK$25,000 (2021: HK$3,845,000) was recognised in respect

of deposits and other receivables.

The Group's bank balances were located in reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may cause the Group’s
right with respect to bank balances held to be delayed or
limited. The directors monitor the credit rating of these banks
on an ongoing basis, and consider that the Group's exposure
to credit risk as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021

were minimal.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 36. MR ER (&)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REBESRA &)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRETR B ZFRZITE=-—F
at the based on undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date TZA=+—BZBTEOREA
the Group can be required as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. DIRBEARBBREERERERAEHE

BRZ&FHEPME-

As at 31 December 2022 R=B=-Z=ZH+=ZA=+—H
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHRBR -FRE -F% mE#
REE REREAE RER BWFR BRER RENRE
TERT TERT TER TER TER TER
Trade and other payables EHRAERTE 94,004 94,004 94,004 - - -
Bond payables EES 30,900 40,383 1,790 1,790 14,123 22,680
Financial liabilities at fair value BRBHEEDAERIE
through profit or loss B%EE 23,902 42,705 3,150 3,150 36,405 -
Lease liabilities BEEE 438 460 240 220 - -
149,244 177,552 99,184 5,160 50,528 22,680
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRER —FR5 —Fi& RE%
REE RengmE REKX BMER BRER
THET FER THET TER TR
Trade and other payables o RHMERNTE 30,625 30,625 30,625 - -
Bond payables ENESH 33,666 33,765 33,765 - -
Lease liabilities HERRE 657 749 267 257 225
64,948 65,139 64,657 257 225

ERERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk related to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank deposits which earn interests at floating rates. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing liabilities at floating rates. The Group has not
used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy to manage
the interest rate risk. The directors considered that the Group’s

exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong. The functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is HK$.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
that are denominated primarily in United States dollar ("US$")
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Both US$
and RMB presented as below are currencies other than the

functional currencies of the operations to which they related.

36. WBERER &)
(i RERERAALBEANEE

B

FMEEBRAFHETAZ ARBERE
ERERTSHESEMKE) 2 R -

REBAZZMERBREERER
REBRBAEZBITHER-R_E
MZZT-_—F+ZA=+—8"
REBUEERFHFNEABEE-
REEWERGEREIMITETESHNE
SRR S R B o AN R [ I S I E B R R
KRB BR - EER/NEEHAR
ZHERBITEAX

BE¥ER

KEBFERBBLE ARARE
AREHMBERARIZNEEE BB
REZE_Z__FR_ZF_—F+=
R=E+—HILEE AEBZEBRA

BREZRBFEREEZUET([E])
AEZHE - ETRARKEY RIEHE
EB 2N EB AN 2 B -

RMB
AR®
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CF —E-—F —E-=F —E-—F
FHR FB FHR FB

Trade and other receivables & 5 & 4t e U 708 124 - 12
Cash and cash equivalents ReELBEE2EED 55 12 94
Trade and other payables B 5 R H At FE A 5UE (549) (569) (80) (94)
Overall net exposure BERERRFE (524) (390) (68) 12
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e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

(v)

As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not have
material exchange rate risk on such currency. The transactions
and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in RMB is
minimal, the Group considers there has no material currency
risk exposure in respect of RMB. Therefore, no sensitivity

analysis is performed.

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.

The Group’s loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase
as a result of gains/losses on change in fair value of held-for-

trading investments recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 5%, the Group’s loss before income tax
would be approximately HK$1,801,000 (2021: HK$2,130,000)
lower/higher, arising as a result of the fair value change of

held-for-trading investments.

36. KB ERE &)
(iv) E R 2)

(v)

MRB T EE TS E AL E I
BAEZEE ZEREXAR -AA
REAENRGREBEERAER
D WAERERR/LESRAREH
BORHME Bl e o A 1t - 3 B HE 1T B
B e

B E R

AEEZHFEERERERENR
ZARBEFE B A B @R
BAEFERAR - EFEBERT
RIERKFHIREAR S ERZER

AEBEFARBREEKE B DA E
REFHEEFEREANBEES WS
EEmR D e

RZE__F+A=+—H MK
BERE LA TES%  AEBEFARKR
ISR EIREERIEESEREZR
SEEZE TR, H1491,801,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-FE_-_—#F+_-H=+—HIEE

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.EXxEBERE

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt
to equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debts as
total interest-bearing liabilities comprising bond payables and lease
liabilities as disclosed in Notes 25 and 26 respectively, less cash
and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises of share capital and

reserves.

AEBEREAEEREARE ZFHEL
BRET ML A E AR I H @RI
A ELAD N 5 AR B 3 S R R &R

S B B MR 5 R EIR R AR
8 DATE 078 f K T A B 0 2 B IR R
B EEE S E SRR BA 21828
REE 2R T L REARR 2 B2
HEARBRTHE

AEBMENFEBHRSRLITERAER
EE-RHEMEAEEREFEHREE
s k2eR B2 RN EFREEAEZ
BABRERREMASEEY MBS
BIRR A K {4 o

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-CF —E-—fF

FHERT FHT

Bond payables JEREH 30,900 33,666

Lease liabilities HEaE 438 657
Financial liabilities at fair value through FERBRIEAAEBENE

profit or loss ZEBaE 23,902 -

Less: Cash and cash equivalents HRERREEEYD (3,722) (4,721)

Net debt FEK 51,518 29,602

Total equity BRER 18,589 114,824

Net debt to equity ratio FELHERL R 277% 26%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HF-F-—#+=-F=+—HAILFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into new lease agreements for the use of leased properties for 3
years. On the lease commencement, the Group recognised right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$666,000 and HK$666,000

respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 February 2023, the Company completed to issue and allotted
483,775,896 at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per share by way
of rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) to the qualifying shareholder of
the Company on the basis of one rights share for every one share
held on 30 December 2022. The gross proceeds of approximate
HK$48,378,000 will be intended to repay the bond payables and

for general working capital.
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Financial Summary

MBHRE

1. RESULTS 1. ¥4
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g St -3 —T-F e —ZT-NEF —T-N\F
TR THT FET FET TEx
Revenue N 69,207 71,891 53,768 67,707 112,279
Loss before income tax BRETETIRIER (104,251) (18,108) (35,541) (34,801) (26,773)
Income tax credit FEHiEe - - 572 255 21
Loss for the year attributable ARAEBNEEFESHE
to owners of the Company (104,251) (18,108) (34,969) (34,546) (26,752)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EEREE
At 31 December
Rt=A=t+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E--% —E-—fF —T-%F —T-NE —Z-N\E
THER THT TR TR THx
Total assets BEE 172,840 184,777 212,756 192,817 234,093
Total liabilities BaE 154,251 69,953 80,663 86,530 98,258
Equity attributable to AARHEEAEEES
owners of the Company 18,589 114,824 132,093 106,287 135,835
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